
Mission Statement: “Provide facilities, infrastructure and services appropriate to the public in manner that enhances the community’s quality of life and economic vigor” 

OLIVIA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, November 20, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. 

Join via Zoom.us              Meeting ID: 876 3129 4296      Passcode: 56277 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM
Councilors:  Baumgartner    Ebbers  Ferguson  Mayor Hawkinson  Padrnos 

II. PUBLIC FORUM (When addressing the Council, please provide your name for the meeting record.)

III. AGENDA APPROVAL

IV. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Regular Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2023

B. Work Session Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2023

C. Resolution 2023-111, Step Movement for Damon Coots

D. Resoltuion 2023-112, Election Polling Place Designation for 2024

E. Resolution 2023-113, 2024 Liquor Licenses Set for Approval

F. Resolution 2023-114, A Resolution Authorizing the Certification of Unpaid Refuse Charges to the

Renville County Auditor for Inclusion on the Tax Rolls for the Calendar Year 2024

G. Public Works Quote – Midstates Equipment & Supply

H. Auditing Service RFP – Abdo

I. Confirm Mayoral Appointment of Ben Aaseth to the Park Board

J. Resolution 2023-115, Deferring Special Assessment Against Certain Property

K. Public Works Quote – Midway Farm Equipment

V. DISCUSSION / BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Public Hearing Amending Ordinance 2023-07, Amending Section 152.086 Standards, Home

Occupation of Chapter 152
B. Second Reading of Ordinance 2023-06, Amending Section 92.32 ET.Seq. Weeds
C. SecondReading of Ordinance 2023-08, Amending Section 92.17 Public Nuisances Affecting Morals
D. TH 212 Watermain Project

1. Presentation
2. Draft Assessment Roll
3. Assessment Maps
4. Resolution 2023-116, Declaring Cost to be Assessed, Ordering Preparation of Proposed

Assessment, and Call for a Hearing on Proposed Assessment
5. Draft Notice of Hearing

E. Safe Routes to School Trail Project – Phase 2
F. Reevaluate Resolution 2023-58, Approving Additional Compensation for Chief Jason Krumheuer
G. Pole Attachment Agreement
H. Transfer of Ownership regarding real property: PID 35-05255-00, 35-052600-00, 35-05261-00 and

35-05275-00

VII. REPORTS
A. Pool

B. Park Board

C. PUC

D. Other Reports of Council / Staff

VI. NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS

VII. CLOSED SESSION – Closed in Accordance with MN Statute 13.05D Subd 3(c)(1)
a. Discussion Regarding Real Property: PID #’s 35-05620-00, 35-05625-00, 35-05630-00, 35-05635-



Mission Statement: “Provide facilities, infrastructure and services appropriate to the public in manner that enhances the community’s quality of life and economic vigor” 

 

00, 35-05645-00, 35-05650-00, 35-05655-00 and 35-05660-00 
 

 

IX.    ADJOURNMENT 



REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, November 6, 2023 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Olivia, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 

Hawkinson at 5:30 P.M. 

Council Members Present: Matt Baumgartner, George Ebbers, Blanca Ferguson, Mayor Hawkinson and 

Landon Padrnos. 

Others present: Elizabeth Torkelson, City Administrator; Jason Krumheuer, Police Chief; Pamela 

Whitmore, City Attorney (zoom); Ross Okins, Renville County Register; Jasmine Miller, Deputy Clerk. 

 

 

PUBLIC FORUM 

 

Mayor Hawkinson temporarily suspended the regular meeting and opened the public forum at 5:31 P.M. 

 

No public comments were offered so Mayor Hawkinson reopened the regular meeting at 5:31 P.M. 

 

AGENDA  

Motion by Ferguson, second by Baumgartner: to approve the agenda as presented. Motion passed 

unanimously.  

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Baumgartner, second by Ebbers: to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

• Regular Meeting Minutes of October 16, 2023 

• Special Meeting Minutes of October 30, 2023 

• Confirm Mayoral Appointment of Krystle Dillon to the Economic Development Board 

• Resolution 2023-105, Step Movement for Shawn Hanson 

• Resolution 2023-106, Step Movement for Craig Mages 

• Resolution 2023-107, Step Movement for Jesse Zeitz 

• Resolution 2023-108, Authorizing Employment to Dustin Stahnke, Public Works Worker 

• October Expenditures 

• Electric Department Purchase Order – B&B Transformer 

• Electric Department Purchase Order – JT Services 

• Electric Department Quote – Wesco 

• Resolution 2023-109, Authorizing and Directing the City Administrator to Execute and 

Deliver LMC Liability Coverage Waiver Form Whereby the City Does Not Waive the 

Monetary Limits on Municipal Tort Liability Established by Minnesota Statutes §466.04 

• Electric Department Quote – Chappell Central 

• Contractor’s Application for Payment No. 10 – DePue Ave Improvement Project 

• Contractor’s Application for Payment No. 1 – 212 Water Main Improvement Project 



DISCUSSION / BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

Public Hearing for Fee Schedule 

At 5:34 P.M. Mayor Hawkinson temporarily recessed the regular meeting and opened the public hearing. 

Torkelson shared that this item was addressed at the previous meeting and considered the first reading. 

This item is back to Council for a second reading and a public hearing.  

 

No public comments were offered so Mayor Hawkinson reopened the regular meeting at 5:34 P.M. 

 

Resolution 2023-102, Updating the Fine and Fee Schedule   

Motion by Ferguson, second by Baumgartner: to approve Resolution 2023-102, Updating the Fine and 

Fee Schedule. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

First Reading of Ordinance 2023-06, Amending Section 92.32 ET.Seq. Weeds 

Whitmore shared that there was a legislate change that specifically addressed what cities can and cannot 

do and that they must allow managed natural landscape area. The Ordinance reflects the statutory changes 

and requirement that would allow for the property owner to have a managed landscape area and putting 

parameters in place for setbacks off property lines, and required signage.  

 

Resolution 2023-110, Amending the City of Olivia Smoke and Tobacco-Free Parks Policy 

Motion by Ebbers, second by Baumgartner: to approve Resolution 2023-110, Amending the City of 

Olivia Smoke and Tobacco-Free Parks Policy. Motion passed unanimously. 

Whitmore stated that this resolution is amending the policy to reflect a previous discussion about 

cannabis.  

 

First Reading of Ordinance 2023-07, Amending Section 152.086 Standards, Home Occupation of Chapter 

152 

Whitmore shared that the Council’s previous discussion about cannabis suggested a desire to make sure 

that the home occupation restrictions in residential districts would include no retail or commercial sales of 

cannabis products.  

Hawkinson stated that we will hold a public hearing on November 20, 2023 regarding Ordinance 2023-07, 

Amending Section 152.086. 

 

First Reading of Ordinance 2023-08, Amending Section 92.17 Public Nuisances Affecting Morals and 

Decency 

Whitmore shared that this ordinance change is a reflection of the discussion of the Council at the October 

meeting about cannabis.  

 

No additional items or new business items were presented. 

 

REPORTS 

 

EDA 

Ebbers shared that the board had discussed housing at their last meeting. Mayor Hawkinson added that 

the focus was on Fairview Estates located near Pond Park. 

 

Other Reports of Council / Staff 

Torkelson shared that staff is working to updated the Employee Personnel Policy.  

Mayor Hawkinson shared that the Chamber has been very proactive with planning Holiday Happenings 

taking place on December 7th. 



No additional reports were presented. 

NOTICES AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Mayor Hawkinson urged residents to vote for the school referendum. Mayor Hawkinson also thanked the 

veterans and highlighted that they will be celebrated on Saturday.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Padrnos, second by Baumgartner: to adjourn the meeting at 5:48 P.M.  Motion passed 

unanimously. 

________________________________ Attest: ________________________ 

Jon Hawkinson, Mayor  Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 



WORK SESSION MINUTES 

 

Monday, November 13, 2023 

5:30 P.M. – 6:39 P.M. 

WORK SESSION 

Council Members Present: Matt Baumgartner, George Ebbers, Blanca Ferguson, Jon Hawkinson and 

Landon Padrnos. 

Others present: Elizabeth Torkelson, City Administrator; Jason Krumheuer, Police Chief; Tim Seehusen, 

Fire Chief; Jim Bach, Marcus Construction; Andrew Lindquist, Marcus Construction; Ross Okins, Renville 

County Register; Jasmine Miller, Deputy Clerk. 

City of Olivia Public Safety Facility 

The Council met to discuss designs plans for the City Hall/Public Safety Building Project. Marcus 

Construction presented preliminary plans to the Council and worked through potential changes for the 

office, fire department and police department spaces.  

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

  _________________________ 

  Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 



City of Olivia 

Olivia City Council 

November 20, 2023 

Request for Action 

Agenda Item: Step Movement for Damon Coots 

Request for Action: Adopt Resolution #2023-111, Approving Step Movement for Damon Coots 

Employee/Dept.: Damon Coots, Patrol Officer 

Background: 

Damon Coots, Patrol Officer is eligible for a 6-month step movement based on a satisfactory review of 

his performance. 

It is recommended that Damon Coots be moved to Step 1 of Grade 10 of the approved pay scale. Step 

movements have been approved and accounted for in the 2023 budget. 

Budget Impact: 

N/A 

Funding Source: 

General fund 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approving the step movement for Damon Coots. 

Motion Type: 

Simple majority vote of members present. 

Attachments: 

Resolution #2023-111



CITY OF OLIVIA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-111

RESOLUTION APPROVING 

STEP MOVEMENT 

WHEREAS, the City of Olivia (the “City”) has provided for step movements of 

employees on the approved pay scale; and 

WHEREAS, Damon Coots has satisfactorily had his performance reviewed for his first 6 
months of service on the police department and subsequent goals set for the upcoming year; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of 

the City of Olivia, Minnesota, hereby approves placement of Damon Coots at Step 1 of Grade 

10 of the approved pay scale effective December 19, 2023. 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Olivia this 20th day or November 2023 

________________________________ 

Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 

  Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-112 

CITY OF OLIVIA 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING POLLING PLACES FOR ELECTIONS CONDUCTED IN 

THE CITY OF OLIVIA IN 2024 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes 204B.16, subd. 1 requires the City Council, by ordinance or 

resolu�on, to designate polling places for the upcoming year; and 

WHEREAS, changes to the polling place loca�on may be made before the next elec�on if one or 

more of the authorized polling places becomes unavailable for use; and 

WHEREAS, changes to the polling place loca�ons may be made in the case of an emergency 
when it is necessary to ensure a safe and secure loca�on for vo�ng. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

That the Olivia City Council hereby designates the following polling places for elec�ons 

conducted in the City for the Elec�ons in 2024: 

Olivia Precinct (0135) 
Olivia Library, 405 South 10th Street, Olivia, MN 56277 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby authorized to designate a 

replacement mee�ng the requirements of the Minnesota Elec�on Law for any polling place 
designated in this Resolu�on that becomes unavailable for use by the City; 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby authorized to designate an 

emergency replacement polling place mee�ng the requirements of the Minnesota Elec�on Law 
for any polling place designated in this Resolu�on when necessary to ensure a safe and secure 
loca�on for vo�ng; 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to send a copy of this resolu�on 

and any subsequent polling place designa�ons to the Renville County Elec�ons Office. 

Adopted by the City Council this 20th day of November 2023. 

_________________________________

Jon Hawkinson, Mayor

Atested by:  _______________________ 

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 



City of Olivia, Minnesota 

Resolution 2023-113 

2023 Liquor Licenses Set for Approval 

It is hereby resolved by the City of Olivia, Minnesota that: 

WHEREAS; The City of Olivia Code of Ordinances chapter 116 establishes the provisions for licensing 

of establishments selling or serving liquor and other alcoholic beverages in the City; 

WHEREAS; City Staff have sent renewal packets for 2024 liquor license applications and once returned 

by Licensee will confirm all the applicants listed below have retained sufficient liability insurance 

coverage to meet City and State insurance requirements; and 

WHEREAS; The Olivia Police Chief will review the following liquor license applications and will 

determine that there are no current civil or criminal compliance issues that would keep the applicants 

from making their licensure requests; 

THEREFORE; The Olivia City Council approves the renewal of the following licenses subject to the 

terms set forth in all relevant sections of Minnesota Statutes and the Olivia City Code: 

Licensee Name: American Legion 186   

Licensed Premise: 2450 W Lincoln Ave. 

License(s) Approved: On-sale, Sunday 

Licensee Name: Olivia Hotel & Restaurant (Max’s Grill) 

Licensed Premise: 2425 W Lincoln Ave 

License(s) Approved: On-sale, Sunday 

Licensee Name: Olivia Golf Club Inc. 

Licensed Premise: 512 S 6th Street 

License(s) Approved: On-sale, Sunday 

Licensee Name: Brly’s Inc.  

Licensed Premise: 211 N 9th Street 

License(s) Approved: On-sale, Sunday 

Licensee Name: City of Olivia (Olivia Municipal Liquor Store) 

Licensed Premise: 812 E Lincoln Ave. 

License(s) Approved: On-sale at 812 E Lincoln; Off-sale at 802 E Lincoln 

Licensee Name: Casey’s Retail Company (Casey’s General Store) 

Licensed Premise: 620 E Lincoln Ave 

License(s) Approved: Off-sale 3.2 Malt Liquor (Beer) 

Adoption by the City Council of the City of Olivia on this 20th day of November 2023. 

___________________________ 

Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

  Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 



CITY OF OLIVIA, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION 2023-114  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CERTIFICATION OF UNPAID REFUSE CHARGES 

TO THE RENVILLE COUNTY AUDITOR FOR INCLUSION ON THE TAX ROLLS FOR THE 

CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

WHEREAS, the City of Olivia recognizes the following list (Exhibit A of this resolution) as unpaid refuse 
accounts being held by West Central Sanitation; and  

WHEREAS, Olivia Code section 53.23 provides the procedure for the City to certify unpaid refuse 
service fees and charges to the County Auditor to be collected with property taxes levied against the 
property; and 

WHEREAS, the Code provides for due process rights of property owners to be respected by establishing 
a public hearing process so that owners can directly address the City Council regarding the unpaid refuse 
accounts in question prior to any certification authorization being considered; and 

WHEREAS, notices were sent to the owners of the unpaid refuse accounts advising them of the public 
hearing on October 16th at or after 5:30 p.m. regarding the possible certification of past-due refuse 
collection fees and charges being certified against the properties in question; and 

WHEREAS, said hearing was held which provided the public with an opportunity to provide written or 
oral testimony for the City Council to take into account prior to formal consideration of this resolution. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that these unpaid accounts include a ten percent City administration 
fee and a $5.00 County Assessment Set-up Fee.  

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that after receiving public testimony, having reviewed the information 
provided regarding the unpaid refuse accounts, the City Council of the City of Olivia hereby authorizes the 
unpaid accounts listed in Exhibit A to be certified to Renville County Auditor and placed as 2023 Refuse 
Collection Account Assessments against that Property’s taxes payable with 2024 tax statements.  

Adoption by the City Council of the City of Olivia on this 20th Day of November, 2023. 

Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 



WCS Acct No. Service Address
Delinquent 

Amount

10% Admin 

Fee

County 

Assessment 

Set Up Fee

Total 

Amount 

Assessed

16442100 410 7th St S $41.76 $4.18 $5.00 $50.94

9300300 605 10th St S $31.83 $3.18 $5.00 $40.01

3065900 214 5th St S $52.68 $5.27 $5.00 $62.95

16573400 306 Fairview Ave $178.16 $17.82 $5.00 $200.98

17507800 312 11th St S $35.38 $3.54 $5.00 $43.92

7631200 307 9th St N           $50.34 $5.03 $5.00 $60.37

17465900 211 Depue Ave E $85.96 $8.60 $5.00 $99.56

17621000 205 11th St S $20.20 $2.02 $5.00 $27.22

7159400 501 11th St N $99.52 $9.95 $5.00 $114.47

17423200 403 3rd St S $25.56 $2.56 $5.00 $33.12

17296700 1007 DePue Ave E #201 $139.57 $13.96 $5.00 $158.53

16588000 712 Plum Ave E #22 $58.74 $5.87 $5.00 $69.61

16170500 209 7th St S $12.48 $1.25 $5.00 $18.73

4054900 307 DePue Ave E $30.73 $3.07 $5.00 $38.80

6885400 1304 Fairview Ave W $43.90 $4.39 $5.00 $53.29

6266400 705 Lincoln Ave E $86.74 $8.67 $5.00 $100.41

1481200 913 Circle Dr $92.68 $9.27 $5.00 $106.95

2987500 808 15th St S $79.27 $7.93 $5.00 $92.20

3829700 303 11th St N $87.19 $8.72 $5.00 $100.91

1415500 410 10th St S $21.95 $2.20 $5.00 $29.15

1573700 612 Maple Ave E $98.99 $9.90 $5.00 $113.89

12925000 616 DePue Ave E $39.07 $3.91 $5.00 $47.98

2519700 1312 Pine Cir $52.68 $5.27 $5.00 $62.95

7010400 110 10th St S $52.68 $5.27 $5.00 $62.95

6432700 110 6th St S $25.11 $2.51 $5.00 $32.62

16738800 708 9th St N $141.82 $14.18 $5.00 $161.00

Total $1,684.99 $168.50 $130.00 $1,983.49

Resolution 2023-114 Exhibit A

Delinquent Refuse Bills - 2023 

Certify for Assessment to 2024 Taxes



















































































Steven McDonald, CPA

Managing Partner  |  Abdo

smcdonald@abdosolutions.com

P 952.715.3002

Dollar Cost Proposal for

1009 West Lincoln Ave

Olivia, Minnesota 56277

City of Olivia

abdosolutions.com   |   Edina, MN   - Mankato, MN   - Scottsdale, AZNovember 13, 2023



2

2023 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Hours
Standard 

Hourly Rate
Proposed 

Hourly Rate
Total

Partners 16 $480 $260 $4,160

Manager 73 $290 $175 $12,775

Staff 181 $240 $133 $24,073

Other (Administration) 10 $105 $100 $1,000

- Rounding - ($8)

Subtotal 280 $42,000

City Audit and Audit 
Adjustments

If accounting adjustments are needed beyond the scope of the audit, additional accounting 
fees will be discussed at the time of the services provided.

Office of State Auditor Report $800

Single Audit, Per Major Program 
(if necessary)

$6,125

Subtotal

Out-of-Pocket Expenses None Expected

Total Not-to-Exceed Cost for the 2023 Audit $48,925

Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses 
for the Audits of the 2023 Financial Statements 

for the City of Olivia



3

2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Hours
Standard 

Hourly Rate
Proposed 

Hourly Rate
Total

Partners 16 $480 $275 $4,400

Manager 73 $290 $185 $13,505

Staff 181 $240 $139 $25,159

Other (Administration) 10 $105 $100 $1,000

- Rounding - ($14)

Subtotal 280 $44,050

City Audit and Audit 
Adjustments

If accounting adjustments are needed beyond the scope of the audit, additional accounting 
fees will be discussed at the time of the services provided.

Office of State Auditor Report $825

Single Audit, Per Major Program 
(if necessary)

$6,650

Subtotal

Out-of-Pocket Expenses None Expected

Total Not-to-Exceed Cost for the 2024 Audit $51,525

Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses 
for the Audits of the 2024 Financial Statements 

for the City of Olivia



4

2025 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Hours
Standard 

Hourly Rate
Proposed 

Hourly Rate
Total

Partners 16 $480 $290 $4,640

Manager 73 $290 $195 $14,235

Staff 181 $240 $146 $26,426

Other (Administration) 10 $105 $105 $1,050

- Rounding - ($1)

Subtotal 280 $46,350

City Audit and Audit 
Adjustments

If accounting adjustments are needed beyond the scope of the audit, additional accounting 
fees will be discussed at the time of the services provided.

Office of State Auditor Report $800

Single Audit, Per Major Program 
(if necessary)

$7,175

Subtotal

Out-of-Pocket Expenses None Expected

Total Not-to-Exceed Cost for the 2025 Audit $54,375

Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses 
for the Audits of the 2025 Financial Statements 

for the City of Olivia





1 
 

CITY OF OLIVA, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-115 

 

RESOLUTION DEFERRING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT  

AGAINST CERTAIN PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Olivia (“City”) has levied special assessments against benefited 
properties for the City’s DePue Avenue Improvement Project (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, Section 429.061, subd. 2 authorizes the City to defer such 
assessments against unimproved property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Special Assessment Policy also authorizes the City to defer assessments 
against certain unimproved property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Olivia (“City Council”) has determined to defer a 
portion of the assessments against those properties designated as P.I.D. No. 35-03150-00 and 35-
03110-00 (the “Subject Properties”), as provided below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Subject Property is owned by,                                                                         , 
single people; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owners are both 65 years of age or older and the amount of the annual 
installments due on the special assessments against the above-described property is an amount in 
excess of one percent (1%) of the total annual gross income of the undersigned, excluding social 
security; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed deferment complies with state law and 
city policy and will promote the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of Olivia; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on the foregoing, the City Council finds that it is reasonable and appropriate 
to defer the assessment on the Subject Property pursuant to this Resolution. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Olivia as 
follows: 

1. The special assessment for improvements for the Project in the total principal 
amount of $19,561.24 to parcel 35-03150-00 and $27,896.20 to parcel 35-03110-00 is deferred 
until the first to occur of any of the following: 
 

a. The sale of the Subject Property; or 
 
b. The replatting, subdivision, or improvement of the Subject Property;  

 
Whereupon said the deferred special assessment shall be due and payable. 

35-03150-00 Douglas Wittenberg 

35-03110-00 Robert Trummer 



2 
 

 
2. Interest on the deferred principal amount stated in paragraph 1 will accrue at the 

rate of five (5) percent per annum until paid. 
 

3. The City Attorney and City Staff are hereby authorized and directed to execute 
the intent of this Resolution, including filing a certificate with the Renville County Recorder 
containing the legal description of the Subject Property.  
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Olivia this 20th day of November, 2023. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

 
 
Attest: _________________________________   

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk 
  
 







1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-07 

CITY OF OLIVIA 

COUNTY OF RENVILLE 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 152.086 STANDARDS, HOME 

OCCUPATIONS OF CHAPTER 152.  

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Session Law 2023, Chapter 63, effective in relevant part on July 

1, 2023, and on August 1, 2023, established that the adult use, possession and personal growing of 

cannabis is legal subject to the requirements and restrictions of Minnesota Statutes; and 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Session Law 2023, Chapter 63, is codified in Chapter 152 and 

342 of the Minnesota Statues; and 

 WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 342.14, recognizes zoning authority of local units of 

government and sets up a process where the state oversight agency, the Office of Cannabis 

Management, shall seek certification from cities whether a proposed cannabis business 

complies with local zoning ordinances; and 

 WHEREAS, the City’s existing Code provides parameters for allowable home occupations 

in its residential districts; and 

 WHEREAS, the City recognizes the risks to public health and the creation of unintended 

exposure of youth to cannabinoid products, as that term is defined in Minn. Stat. § 342.10, from  

commercial selling or commercial growing of cannabis products in residential neighborhoods; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City recognizes the decrease in safety and enjoyment of residential 

properties from the likely increase in traffic and congestion in neighborhoods from the commercial 

selling or commercial growing of cannabis products in residential districts. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Olivia does ordain: 

 

SECTION 1. Section 152.086 of Chapter 152 of the City of Olivia Code is amended to add the 

underscored text to read as follows: 

 

(U). Retail or commercial sales of cannabinoid products, as that term is defined in Minn. Stat. 

§342.01 is prohibited in all residential zones. 

 

 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall become effective on the first day of 

publication after adoption. 

 

Passed this 20th day of November, 2023. 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST_____________________________ 

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk  

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-06 

CITY OF OLIVIA 

COUNTY OF RENVILLE 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 92.35 ET.SEQ. WEEDS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Minnesota Legislature passed the 2023 omnibus state government finance bill, 

which was signed into law on May 24, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, Article 3, section 9 of that bill created a new provision of law referred to as 

Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.925; and 

 WHEREAS, the new law requires a statutory city to allow an owner, authorized agent, or 

authorized occupant of any privately owned lands or premises to install and maintain a managed 

natural landscape, if desired.  

Now therefore, the City Council of the City of Olivia does ordain: 

 

SECTION 1. Olivia City Code of Ordinances, WEEDS, Section 92.35 et. seq is hereby amended by 

adding the following underscored text and deleting the stricken-out text: 

 

 

WEEDS 

§ 92.35  SHORT TITLE. 

This subchapter shall be cited as the Weed Ordinance. 

§ 92.36  JURISDICTION. 

This subchapter shall be in addition to any state statute or county ordinance presently in effect, 

subsequently added, amended, or repealed. 

§ 92.37  DEFINITIONS; EXCLUSIONS. 

(A) For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 

clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

DESTRUCTION ORDER. The notice served by the City Council or designated city official, in 

cases of appeal, on the property owner of the ordinance violation.  

 GRASS LAWN. A lawn composed mostly of grasses commonly used in regularly cut lawns or 

play areas, including but not limited to bluegrass, fescue, and ryegrass blends, intended to be 

maintained at a height of no more than eight inches. 

 



 MANAGED NATURAL LANDSCAPE. A planned, intentional, and maintained planting of 

native or nonnative grasses, wildflowers, forbs, ferns, shrubs, or trees, including but not limited to rain 

gardens, meadow vegetation, and ornamental plants. Managed natural landscapes does not include turf-

grass lawns left unattended for the purpose of returning to a natural state. 

 

 MEADOW VEGETATION. Grasses and flowering broad-leaf plants that are native to, or 

adapted to, the state of Minnesota, and that are commonly found in meadow and prairie plant 

communities but does not include noxious weeds as that term is defined by Minnesota Statutes, Section 

18.77, subdivision 8. 

 

 ORNAMENTAL PLANTS. grasses, perennials, annuals, and groundcovers purposely planted 

for aesthetic reasons. 

PROPERTY OWNER. The person occupying the property, the holder of legal title, or a person 

having control over the property of another, such as a right-of-way, easement, license, or lease. 

WEEDS, GRASSES, and RANK VEGETATION. Includes but is not limited to the following: 

(A)  Noxious weeds and rank vegetation shall include those prohibited noxious weeds, 

whether annual, biennial, or perennial plants, that the commissioner designates as having the potential or 

are known to be detrimental to human or animal health, the environment, public roads, crops, livestock 

or other property and include, but not be limited to:  alum (allium), Buckthorn, Bur Cucumber, Canada 

Thistle, Corncockle, Cressleaf Groundsel, Curly Dock, Dodder, Field Bindweed, French Weed, Hairy 

Whitetop, Hedge Bindweed, Hoary Cress, Horsenettle, Johnsongrass, Leafy Spurge, Mile-A-Minute 

Weed, Musk Thistle, Oxeye Daisy, Perennial Sowthistle, Poison Hemlock, Purple Loosestrife, 

Quackgrass, Russian Knapweed, Russian Thistle, Serrated Tussock, Shatter Cane,  Sorghum, Wild 

Carrot, Wild Garlic, Wild Mustard, Wild Onion, Wild Parsnip.;   

(1)  Grapevines when growing in groups of 100 or more and not pruned, sprayed, 

cultivated, or otherwise maintained for 2 consecutive years;  

(2) Bushes of the species of tall, common, or European barberry, further known as 

berberisvulgaris or its horticultural varieties; 

(3) Any weeds, grass, or plants, other than trees, bushes, flowers, or other ornamental 

plants, growing to a height exceeding 12 inches; 

(4) Rank vegetation includes the uncontrolled, uncultivated growth of annuals and 

perennial plants; and 

(5) The term WEEDS does not include shrubs, trees, cultivated plants, or crops. 

(B) In no event shall cultivated plants or crops include plants which have been defined by 

state statute or administrative rule as being noxious or detrimental plants. 

 RAIN GARDEN. A native plant garden that is designed not only to aesthetically improve 

properties, but also to reduce the amount of stormwater and accompanying pollutants from entering 

streams, lakes, and rivers.  

§ 92.38  OWNERS RESPONSIBILITYLE FOR TRIMMING, REMOVAL, AND THE LIKE. 



(A)  Except as part of a managed natural landscape as defined in this section, all property owners shall 

be responsible for the removal, cutting, or disposal and elimination of weeds, grasses, and rank 

vegetation or other uncontrolled plant growth on their property, which at the time of notice is in 

excess of 12 inches in height.  

(B) Maintenance. Every owner or occupant of real property in the city shall keep cut the grass, weeds, 

and brush maintained in accordance with this Section and be responsible for the removal and 

disposal of dead or diseased trees thereon the property, abutting boulevard, and/or portion of the 

street reserved for sidewalk abutting the property. Except as part of a managed natural landscape as 

defined in this section, any weeds or grasses growing upon any lot or parcel of land in a city to a 

greater height than twelve inches or that have gone to seed or are about to go to seed are prohibited. 

 

(C) Managed Natural Landscapes allowed. With the conditions set forth herein, the City shall allow an 

owner, authorized agent, or authorized occupant of any privately owned lands or premises to install 

and maintain a managed natural landscape, as defined in this Section, which may include certain 

plants and grasses in excess of eight inches in height and which may have gone to seed but which 

shall not include any noxious weeds. The managed natural landscape must be at least 5 feet from 

the property line and must not be located in a city right-of-way or city-owned or controlled 

easement. The managed natural landscape must be identified as a managed natural landscape by a 

sign posted on the property in a location likely to be seen by the public. This sign is required only if 

the managed natural landscape is in an area likely to be seen by the public. This sign must be in 

addition to any sign permitted by the sign ordinance but must be no smaller than ten (10) inches 

square, no larger than one (1) square foot, and no higher than three (3) feet tall. 

 

Penalty, see § 10.99 

 

§ 92.39  FILING COMPLAINT. 

Any person, including the city, who believes there is property located within the corporate limits 

of the city which has growing plant matter in violation of this subchapter shall make a written complaint 

signed, dated, and filed with the City Clerk.  If the city makes the complaint, an employee, officer, or 

Council member of the city shall file the complaint in all respects as set out above. 

§ 92.40  NOTICE OF VIOLATIONS. 

(A) Upon receiving notice of the probable existence of weeds, grasses, or rank vegetation in 

violation of this section and as defined by § 92.37, a person designated by the City Council shall make 

an inspection of the property. If the person designated by the City Council concludes that there is a 

probable belief that this subchapter has been violated, the person shall issue a written notification in the 

form of a Destruction Order to the property owner, and the person occupying the property if different 

from the property owner, as that information is contained within the records of the City Clerk or any 

other city or county agency. The notice shall be served in writing by certified mail or personal service. 

The notice shall provide that within seven calendar days after the receipt of the notice that the designated 

violation shall be removed by the property owner or person occupying the property. 

(B) (1) All notices are to be in writing and all filings are to be with the City Clerk. 



(2) Certified mailing to the City Clerk or others is deemed filed on the date of posting to 

the United States Postal Service. 

(C)      Notices for subsequent violations within the same calendar year may be made by posting 

upon the property and first-class mail to the address listed in the county property tax records.  

§ 92.41  APPEALS. 

(A) (1) The property owner may appeal by filing written notice of objections with the City 

Council or the person designated by the City Council within 48 hours of the Destruction Order excluding 

weekends and holidays, if the property owner contests the findings of the person designated by the City 

Council. 

(2) It is the property owner's responsibility to demonstrate that the matter in question 

is shrubs, trees, cultivated plants, or crops or is not otherwise in violation of this subchapter, and should 

not be subject to destruction under the subchapter. 

 

(B) An appeal by the property owner shall be brought before the City Council and shall be 

decided by a majority vote of the Council members in attendance and being at a regularly scheduled or 

special meeting of the City Council. 

§ 92.42 ABATEMENT BY CITY. 

In the event that the property owner shall fail to comply with the Destruction Order within 7 

regular business days and has not filed a notice within 48 hours to the City Council or the person 

designated by the City Council of an intent to appeal, the person designated by the City Council may 

employ the services of city employees or outside contractors and remove the weeds to conform to this 

subchapter by all lawful means. 

§ 92.43  VIOLATIONS AND LIABILITY. 

(A) Violations. Violation of this section are subject to proper enforcement of §§ 92.35 et seq. as well 

as other applicable statute, laws or code provisions, including representing public nuisances subject to 

abatement under this section. Violations include, but may not be limited to, allowing: 

 i. Noxious weeds; 

 ii. Vegetation that does not meet the maintenance standard specified herein; and 

 iii. Managed natural landscaped areas that do not comply with this Section. 

(B) The property owner is liable for all costs of removal, cutting, or destruction of weeds as 

defined by this subchapter. 

(C) The property owner is responsible for all collection costs associated with weed 

destruction, including but not limited to court costs, attorney's fees, and interest on any unpaid amounts 



incurred by the city.  If the city uses municipal employees, it shall set and assign an appropriate per hour 

rate for employees, equipment, supplies, and chemicals which may be used.  

(D) All sums payable by the property owner are to be paid to the City Clerk and to be deposited 

in a general fund as compensation for expenses and costs incurred by the city. 

(E) All sums payable by the property owner may be collected as a special assessment as 

provided by M.S. § 429.101, as it may be amended from time to time. Any special assessment levied 

under this subdivision shall be payable in a single installment, or by up to ten equal annual installments 

as the council may provide. 

SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall become effective on the first day of 

publication after adoption. 

 

Passed this ____ day of _____, 2023. 

       

        __________________________ 

        Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST_____________________________ 

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk  

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-08 

CITY OF OLIVIA 

COUNTY OF RENVILLE 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 92.17 PUBLIC NUISANCES AFFECTING 

MORALS AND DECENCY 

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Session Law 2023, Chapter 63, effective in relevant part on July 

1, 2023, and on August 1, 2023, established that the adult use, possession and personal growing of 

cannabis is legal, subject to the requirements and restrictions of Minnesota Statutes; and 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Session Law 2023, Chapter 63, Art. 4, section 19, codified as 

Minn. Stat. § 152.0263, subd. 5 authorizes the adoption of local ordinances or policy to regulate 

public use of cannabis; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has in place existing code provisions regarding public nuisances 

affecting moral and decency to protect public health and the safety and to mitigate threats 

presented to the public by exposure to excessive use of intoxicating products; and 

 WHEREAS, current City Code places regulations on excessive use of intoxicating liquor 

in public; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council intends to protect individuals in the community in the same 

manner against excessive use of all intoxicating legal products. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Olivia does ordain: 

 

SECTION 1. Section 92.17 of Chapter 92 of the City of Olivia Code is amended to delete the 

stricken-out text and add the additional underscored text to read as follows: 

 

The following are hereby declared to be nuisances affecting public morals and decency: 

 

 . . .  

 

(D) All places where intoxicating liquor or cannabinoid products are is manufactured or disposed of 

in violation of law or where, in violation of law, people are permitted to resort for the purpose 

of drinking intoxicating liquor or using cannabinoid products, or where intoxicating liquor or 

cannabinoid products are is kept for sale or other disposition in violation of law;, and all liquor, 

cannabinoid products and other property used for maintaining that place; and 

 

(E) Any vehicle used for the unlawful transportation of intoxicating liquor or cannabinoid 

products, or for promiscuous sexual intercourse, or any other immoral or illegal purpose. 

 

SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall become effective on the first day of 

publication after adoption. 



 

Passed this ____ day of _____, 2023. 

 

        __________________________ 

        Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST_____________________________ 

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk  

 



ASSESSMENT ROLL

HIGHWAY 212 WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

OLIVIA, MINNESOTA

DRAFT

Parcel No. Owner Name Additional Name Address Property Address City State Zip Code Legal

Water Main 

Unit (L.F.)

 Water Main 

Assess. 

1" Water 

Service 

Unit (Each)

4" Water 

Service 

Unit (Each)

1" Water Service 

Assess.

4" Water Service 

Assess. Total Assessment

35-05400-00 Wayne Vogt 8341 123rd Ave SE 1930 Lincoln Ave Lake Lillian MN 56253 RAINBOW PARK LOT 1 BLK 1 -EX HWY 

EASEMENT-

290.00 $9,860.00 1.0 0.0 $3,750.00 $0.00 $13,610.00 

35-05410-00 J & R Electric, Inc. 79084 140th St 1830 Lincoln Ave Sacred Heart MN 56285 RAINBOW PARK LOT 1 BLK 2 302.00 $10,268.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $14,013.00 
35-00127-00 City of Olivia 1009 W Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SEC 12 TWP 115N RGE 35W E 422.76' N 

OF SW4 N OF HWY 212 & S OF CO DITCH 

#63 -EX 208' OF S 275'(IRREG) OF E 

422.76- -RAINBOW PARK-

0.00 $0.00 0.0 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

35-00126-00 Neil & Jessica Balderston 207 3rd St S 1750 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SEC 12 TWP 115N RGE 35W E 208' OF S 

275' (IRREG) OF E 422.76' N OF HWY 212 

& S OF COUNTY DITCH #63

210.00 $7,140.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $10,885.00 

35-04324-00 Leslie Stelter 1730 Lincoln Ave W Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES LOT 1 & W 80' OF LOT 2 160.00 $5,440.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $9,185.00 

35-04325-00 Michael Berge 85531 340th St 1650 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56227 SUNSET ACRES E 100' OF W 380' OF LOT 

16 & LOT 2 -EX W 80'- & LOT 3 -EX S 25'- 

& LOT 4 & LAND LYING ADJ IN LOT 16 TO 

LOTS 1, 2 3 & 4

220.00 $7,480.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $11,225.00 

35-04326-00 Adult Client Training Service, Inc. 802 Fairview Ave E 1640 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56227 SUNSET ACRES W 90' OF LOT 5 -EX N 60' 

OF E 50' OF W 90' -& LAND LYING 

ADJACENT IN LOT 16

90.00 $3,060.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $6,805.00 

35-04330-00 Jeffrey & Cynthia Vosika 602 Cedar Ave E 1630 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES LOT 6 & E 10' OF LOT 5 

& PLOT 50' X 60' IN SUBD LOT 5 & LOT 16 

ADJ TO ABOVE DES PROP

110.00 $3,740.00 0.0 1.0 $0.00 $5,900.00 $9,640.00 

35-04372-00 Jeffrey & Cynthia Vosika 602 Cedar Ave E 1604 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES LOT 7 -EX E 10' OF S 

200'- & W 53' OF LOT 8 -EX S 200'- & W 

173' OF E 420' OF LOT 16

110.00 $3,740.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $7,485.00 

35-04370-00 Perry Jahnke 304 Ash Ave 1522 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES E 10' OF S 200' OF LOT 7 

& W 53' OF S 200' OF LOT 8

63.00 $2,142.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $5,887.00 

35-04370-00 Lyle & Carol Jahnke 1305 Birch Ave W 1522 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES E 10' OF S 200' OF LOT 7 

& W 53' OF S 200' OF LOT 8

0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

35-04335-00 His Land Company LLC 11999 62nd St NE 1520 Lincoln Ave Spicer MN 56288 SUNSET ACRES W 232' OF E 247' OF S 

250' OF LOT 8

232.00 $7,888.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $11,633.00 

35-04346-00 DuWayne & Janet Haney 1500 Lincoln Ave W Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES E 15' OF S 185' OF LOT 8 

& W 50' OF S 185' OF LOT 9

65.00 $2,210.00 0.0 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $2,210.00 

35-04352-00 DuWayne & Janet Haney 1500 Lincoln Ave W 1512 Lincoln Ave Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES S 185' OF E 60' OF L 9 & 

S 185' OF W 30' OF L 10

90.00 $3,060.00 1.0 0.0 $3,745.00 $0.00 $6,805.00 

35-04347-00 Janet Haney 1500 Lincoln Ave W Olivia MN 56277 SUNSET ACRES E 20' OF S 332' OF LOT 

10, S 332' OF LOT 11, & W 57.35' OF S 

329.5' OF LOT 12

0.00 $0.00 0.0 0.0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

TOTALS 1,942.00 $66,028.00 10.00 1.00 $37,455.00 $5,900.00 $109,383.00 

Defer assessment until connection is made to water service line.

PREPARED BY:  Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Page 1 of 1
Draft-November 20, 2023

Printed: 11/16/2023



10"

6"
6"

S

RIM 1076.73
4" N 1069.73INV
E 1069.28INV
W 1069.33INVINVINVINV

8"8"8"

6"

S

RIM 1070.91
E-W 1058.52INVINVINVINVINVINV

>

I

>>

>>

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>>>>
>

>

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G
G

G

G

42" RCP CULV
INV 1061.49

GV
RIM 1072.66
TN   1066.66

GV
RIM 1072.53
TN   1065.88

I
I

>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>>>>>>

RIM 1073.05
12" RCP N 1068.30INV
S 1068.40INVINVINVINVINV

RIM 1073.07
12" RCP N 1069.12

RIM 1074.04
12" RCP N 1069.34INV
S 1069.44INVINVINVINVINV

RIM 1074.21
12" RCP S 1069.31INV
NW 1066.36INVINVINVINVINV

S RIM 1074.73
.INVINVINVINVINVINV

INV 1067.93
12" RCP

SIZE
UNKNOWN

>>
>>

>>

US HWY 212

00+7

00+8

00+9

00+10

00+11

00+12

00+13

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

00+1576

00+1577

00+1578

00+1579

10"

6"
6"

S

RIM 1076.73
4" N 1069.73INV
E 1069.28INV
W 1069.33INVINVINVINV

8"8"8"

6"

S

RIM 1070.91
E-W 1058.52INVINVINVINVINVINV

>

I

>>

>>

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>>>>
>

>

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G
G

G

G

42" RCP CULV
INV 1061.49

GV
RIM 1072.66
TN   1066.66

GV
RIM 1072.53
TN   1065.88

I
I

>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>>>>>>

RIM 1073.05
12" RCP N 1068.30INV
S 1068.40INVINVINVINVINV

RIM 1073.07
12" RCP N 1069.12

RIM 1074.04
12" RCP N 1069.34INV
S 1069.44INVINVINVINVINV

RIM 1074.21
12" RCP S 1069.31INV
NW 1066.36INVINVINVINVINV

S RIM 1074.73
.INVINVINVINVINVINV

INV 1067.93
12" RCP

SIZE
UNKNOWN

>>
>>

>>

CITY OF OLIVIA
35-00127-00

$0.00

35-00126-00
1750 LINCOLN AVE

210'
$10,885

35-04324-00
1730 LINCOLN AVE W

160'
$9,185

US HWY 212

00+7

00+8

00+9

00+10

00+11

00+12

00+13

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

00+1576

00+1577

00+1578

00+1579

4"

6"6"
6"

4"S

RIM 1071.21
E-W 1057.01INVINVINVINVINVINV

GI

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

P-BUR
P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

>
>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>>>
>

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

GV
RIM 1069.37
TN   1068.47

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

RIM 1073.05
12" RCP N

INV 1067.93
12" RCP

>>
>>

R
AI

N
BO

W
 L

N

US HWY 212

00+1

00+2

00+3

00+4

00+5

00+6

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

00+1570

00+1571

00+1572

00+1573

4"

6"6"
6"

4"S

RIM 1071.21
E-W 1057.01INVINVINVINVINVINV

GI

I
I

I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

P-BUR
P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

>
>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>>>
>

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

GV
RIM 1069.37
TN   1068.47

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

RIM 1073.05
12" RCP N

INV 1067.93
12" RCP

>>
>>

1930 LINCOLN AVE
35-05400-00

290'
$13,610

1830 LINCOLN AVE
35-05410-00

302'
$14,013

R
AI

N
BO

W
 L

N

US HWY 212

00+1

00+2

00+3

00+4

00+5

00+6

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

00+1570

00+1571

00+1572

00+1573

0

feetscale

20 4020

10

0

feetscale

20 4020

10

1

Sa
ve

: 1
1/

15
/2

02
3 

4:
33

 P
M

 k
ly

ng
aa

s 
Pl

ot
: 1

1/
15

/2
02

3 
4:

34
 P

M
 X

:\K
O

\O
\O

LI
VA

\1
66

76
6\

5-
fin

al
-d

sg
n\

51
-d

ra
w

in
gs

\1
0-

C
iv

il\
ca

d\
dw

g\
O

L1
66

76
6 

AS
SE

SS
.d

w
g

KLL

KLL

JLB 2

Rev.#

Designed By

Drawn By

Checked By

Description DateSEH Project
Revision Issue

Rev.# Description Date
Revision Issue

of

OLIVA 166766
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT
SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED  PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA. HWY 212 WATER MAIN IMPR

ASSESSMENT MAP
HWY 212 WATER MAIN IMPR

OLIVIA, MINNESOTA
XXXX-XX-XX XX-XX-XX

JUSTIN BLACK, PE
DATE LICENSE NO.

SE
E 

BE
LO

W
 L

EF
T

SE
E 

AB
O

VE
 R

IG
H

T

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
2

FEASIBILITY REPORT



RIM 1078.19
12" N 1073.54INVINVINVINVINVINV

ST
RIM 1078.06

12" S 1073.39INV
12" E 1073.35INVINVINVINVINV

10"6"6"

S

RIM 1082.07
E-W 1066.05INVINVINVINVINVINV I

I

>>

>>>>>>>>>>

I

P-BUR

P-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BUR

GGGGGGGGGGGG

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>

GGG
GGGGGGGGGGGGG

GV
RIM 1076.99
TN   1072.49

GV
RIM 1076.55
TN   1070.25

GV
RIM 1077.13
TN   1072.23

GV
RIM 1077.74
TN   1071.54

GV
RIM 1080.66
TN

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

US HWY 212

00+19 00+20 00+21 00+22 00+23 00+24
I I I I I I I I I I I I I

00 00+1588 00+1589 00+1590 00+1591 00+1592 00+1593

RIM 1078.19
12" N 1073.54INVINVINVINVINVINV

ST
RIM 1078.06

12" S 1073.39INV
12" E 1073.35INVINVINVINVINV

10"6"6"

S

RIM 1082.07
E-W 1066.05INVINVINVINVINVINV I

I

>>

>>>>>>>>>>

I

P-BUR

P-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BUR

GGGGGGGGGGGG

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>

GGG
GGGGGGGGGGGGG

GV
RIM 1076.99
TN   1072.49

GV
RIM 1076.55
TN   1070.25

GV
RIM 1077.13
TN   1072.23

GV
RIM 1077.74
TN   1071.54

GV
RIM 1080.66
TN

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

35-04370-00
1522 LINCOLN AVE

63'
$5,887

35-04335-00
1520 LINCOLN AVE

232'
$11,633

35-04346-00
65'

$2,210

35-04352-00
1512 LINCOLN AVE

90'
$6,805

35-04347-00
148'
$0

US HWY 212

00+19 00+20 00+21 00+22 00+23 00+24
I I I I I I I I I I I I I

00 00+1588 00+1589 00+1590 00+1591 00+1592 00+1593

S

RIM 1081.00
E-W 1067.83INVINVINVINVINVINV

FPS

RIM 1076.73
4" N 1069.73INV
E 1069.28INV
W 1069.33INVINVINVINV

P-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BUR

>

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

IIIIIIIIIIII
I

I

I

I

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> GGGGGGGGGGGG
G

G
GG

GV
RIM 1078.87
TN   1073.27

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

US HWY 212

00+13
00+14

00+15
00+16

00+17 00+18

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

00+1582
00+1583

00+1584 00+1585 00+1586 00+1587

S

RIM 1081.00
E-W 1067.83INVINVINVINVINVINV

FPS

RIM 1076.73
4" N 1069.73INV
E 1069.28INV
W 1069.33INVINVINVINV

P-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BURP-BUR

>

GGGGGGGGGGGGGGG

IIIIIIIIIIII
I

I

I

I

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> GGGGGGGGGGGG
G

G
GG

GV
RIM 1078.87
TN   1073.27

> > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > >

35-04325-00
1650 LINCOLN AVE

220'
$11,225 35-04326-00

1640 LINCOLN AVE
90'

$6,805

35-04330-00
1630 LINCOLN AVE

110'
$9,640

35-04372-00
1604 LINCOLN AVE

110'
$7,485

35-04370-00
1522 LINCOLN AVE

63'
$5,887

US HWY 212

00+13
00+14

00+15
00+16

00+17 00+18

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I

00+1582
00+1583

00+1584 00+1585 00+1586 00+1587

0

feetscale

20 4020

10

0

feetscale

20 4020

10

2

Sa
ve

: 1
1/

15
/2

02
3 

4:
33

 P
M

 k
ly

ng
aa

s 
Pl

ot
: 1

1/
15

/2
02

3 
4:

34
 P

M
 X

:\K
O

\O
\O

LI
VA

\1
66

76
6\

5-
fin

al
-d

sg
n\

51
-d

ra
w

in
gs

\1
0-

C
iv

il\
ca

d\
dw

g\
O

L1
66

76
6 

AS
SE

SS
.d

w
g

KLL

KLL

JLB 2

Rev.#

Designed By

Drawn By

Checked By

Description DateSEH Project
Revision Issue

Rev.# Description Date
Revision Issue

of

OLIVA 166766
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT
SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED  PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA. HWY 212 WATER MAIN IMPR

ASSESSMENT MAP
HWY 212 WATER MAIN IMPR

OLIVIA, MINNESOTA
XXXX-XX-XX XX-XX-XX

JUSTIN BLACK, PE
DATE LICENSE NO.

SE
E 

BE
LO

W
 L

EF
T

SE
E 

AB
O

VE
 R

IG
H

T
SE

E 
SH

EE
T 

1

FEASIBILITY REPORT



1 

City of Olivia, Minnesota 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-116 
 

DECLARING COST TO BE ASSESSED, ORDERING PREPARATION OF PROPOSED ASSESSMENT, 
AND CALLING FOR HEARING ON PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 

 
 
WHEREAS, costs have been determined for the Highway 212 Water Main Improvement Project, for the 
construction of water main, water services, driveway and turf restoration, and miscellaneous items 
required to complete the improvements, and the estimated final contract price for such improvements is 
$572,622.00 and the estimated final expenses incurred or to be incurred in the making of such 
improvements amount to $90,000.00, so that the estimated final total cost of the improvements will be 
$662,662.00. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF OLIVIA, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The portion of the cost of such improvement to be paid by the city is hereby declared to be 
$553,279.00, and the portion of the cost to be assessed against benefited property owners is 
declared to be $109,383.00. 

 
2. Assessment shall be payable in equal annual installments extending over a period of 20 

years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the first Monday in January 
2025, and shall bear interest at the rate of 5.15 percent per annum from the date of the 
adoption of the assessment resolution. 

 
3. The City Administrator, with the assistance of the consulting engineer, shall forthwith 

calculate the proper amount to be specially assessed for such improvement against every 
assessable lot, piece or parcel of land within the district affected, without regard to cash 
valuation, as provided by law, and she shall file a copy of such proposed assessment in her 
office for public inspection. 

 
4. A hearing shall be held on the 18th day of December, 2023, in the Olivia City Hall at 5:30 

p.m., to pass upon such proposed assessment and at such time and place all persons 
owning property affected by such improvement will be given an opportunity to be heard with 
reference to such assessment. 

 
5. The City Administrator is hereby directed to cause a notice of the hearing on the proposed 

assessment to be published once in the official newspaper at least two weeks prior to the 
hearing, and shall state in the notice the total cost of the improvement. The City Administrator 
shall also cause mailed notice to be given to the owner of each parcel described in the 
assessment roll not less than two weeks prior to the hearing. 

 
6. The owner of any property so assessed may, at any time prior to certification of the 

assessment to the Renville County Auditor-Treasurer, pay the whole of the assessment on 
such property with interest accrued to the date of payment, to the City of Olivia, except that 
no interest shall be charged if the entire assessment is paid by November 29, 2024. He may 
at any time thereafter, pay to the City the entire amount of the assessment remaining unpaid, 
with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which such payment is made. Such 
payment must be made before November 15 or interest will be charged through December 
31 of the succeeding year. 

 
 



2 

Adopted by the council this 20th day of November, 2023. 
 
 
 

___________________________  
      Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

 
Attest:  _______________________ 

Jasmine Miller, City Clerk     
 
 
 



S
am
pl
e

Page 1 of 2 
(Over) 

NOTICE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED ASSESSMENT 

CITY OF OLIVIA 
1009 W LINCOLN AVE 
OLIVIA MN 56277 

Notice is hereby given that the Olivia city council will meet at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, December 18, 2023 
at the Olivia City Hall, to consider, and possibly adopt, the proposed assessment for the Highway 212 
Water Main Improvement Project, in the north right-of-way of US TH 212 (Lincoln Avenue) from 200 
feet east of County Ditch 63 (East Fork Beaver Creek) east to the area of Haney’s Construction (15th 
Street S).  

Improvements include but are not limited to construction of water main, water services, driveway and turf 
restoration, and miscellaneous items required to complete the improvements. Adoption by the council of 
the proposed assessment may occur at the hearing. The area proposed to be assessed for such 
improvements includes properties abutting such improvements and non-abutting properties for which 
benefit can be attributed.

The amount to be specially assessed against your particular lot, piece, or parcel of land, described as: 

35-00127-00 SEC 12 TWP 115N RGE 35W E 422.76' N OF SW4 N OF HWY 212 & S OF CO
DITCH #63 -EX 208' OF S 275'(IRREG) OF E 422.76- -RAINBOW PARK- 

 
has been calculated as follows: 

 Water Main 0.0 L.F. @ $34.00 = $0.00 
1” Water Service 0.0 Each @ $3,745.00 = $0.00 
4” Water Service 0.0 Each @ $5,900.00 = $0.00 
 TOTAL ASSESSMENT $0.00 

Such assessment is proposed to be payable in equal annual installments extending over a period of 20 
years, the first of the installments to be payable on or before the first Monday in January 2025, and will 
bear interest at a rate of 5.15 percent per annum from the date of the adoption of the assessment 
resolution. To the first installment shall be added interest on the entire assessment from the date of the 
assessment resolution until December 31, 2025. To each subsequent installment when due shall be
added interest for one year on all unpaid installments. 

You may at any time prior to certification of the assessment to the Renville County Auditor-Treasurer, pay 
the entire assessment on such property to the City of Olivia. No interest shall be charged if the entire 
assessment is paid by November 29, 2024. You may at any time thereafter, pay to the City the entire 
amount of the assessment remaining unpaid, with interest accrued to December 31 of the year in which 
such payment is made. Such payment must be made before November 15 or interest will be charged 
through December 31 of the succeeding year. If you decide not to prepay the assessment before the date 
given above the rate of interest that will apply is 5.15 percent per year. The right to partially prepay the 
assessment is available. 

The proposed assessment roll is on file for public inspection at the city administrator’s office. The total 
cost of the project is $662,662.00. The total amount of the proposed assessment is $109,383.00. Written 
or oral objections will be considered at the meeting. No appeal may be taken as to the amount of an 
assessment unless a written objection signed by the affected property owner is filed with the city 
administrator prior to the assessment hearing or presented to the presiding officer at the hearing. The 
council may upon such notice consider any objection to the amount of a proposed individual assessment 
at an adjourned meeting upon such further notice to the affected property owners as it deems advisable. 



S
am
pl
e

Page 2 of 2 

Under Minn. Stat. §§ 435.193 to 435.195, the council may, in its discretion, defer the payment of this 
special assessment for any homestead property owned by a person 65 years of age or older, one retired 
by virtue of a permanent and total disability, or a member of the National Guard or other reserves ordered 
to active military service for whom it would be a hardship to make the payments. When deferment of the 
special assessment has been granted and is terminated for any reason provided in that law, all amounts 
accumulated plus applicable interest become due. Any assessed property owner meeting the 
requirements of this law and the policy adopted under it may, within 30 days of the confirmation of the 
assessment, apply to the city administrator for the prescribed form for such deferral of payment of this 
special assessment on their property. 
 
If an assessment is contested or there is an adjourned hearing, the following procedure will be followed: 
1. The city will present its case first by calling witnesses who may testify by narrative or by 

examination, and by the introduction of exhibits. After each witness has testified, the contesting 
party will be allowed to ask questions. This procedure will be repeated with each witness until 
neither side has further questions. 

2. After the city has presented all its evidence, the objector may call witnesses or present such 
testimony as the objector desires. The same procedure for questioning of the city's witnesses will 
be followed with the objector’s witnesses. 

3. The objector may be represented by counsel. 
4. Minnesota rules of evidence will not be strictly applied; however, they may be considered and 

argued to the council as to the weight of items of evidence or testimony presented to the council. 
5. The entire proceedings will be tape-recorded (video-taped). 
6. At the close of presentation of evidence, the objector may make a final presentation to the council 

based on the evidence and the law. No new evidence may be presented at this point. 
7. The council may adopt the proposed assessment at the hearing. 
 
An owner may appeal an assessment to district court pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 429.081 by serving notice 
of the appeal upon the mayor and city administrator of the city within 30 days after the adoption of the 
assessment and filing such notice with the district court within ten days after service upon the mayor or 
administrator. 
 

Elizabeth Torkelson 
City Administrator 



 

 
 

Engineers  |  Architects  |  Planners  |  Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 1390 Highway 15 South, Suite 200, P.O. Box 308, Hutchinson, MN 55350-0308 
320.587.7341  |  800.838.8666  |  888.908.8166 fax  |  sehinc.com 

SEH is 100% employee-owned  |  Affirmative Action–Equal Opportunity Employer 

November 20, 2023 RE: City of Olivia, Minnesota 
Safe Routes to School Trail Project - 
Phase 2 
SEH No. OLIVA 162141  10.03 

 
Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
City of Olivia 
1009 West Lincoln Avenue 
Olivia, MN 56277 
 
Dear Mayor and Council Members: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal for the City’s second phase of the Safe Routes to 
School Trail project. This letter outlines our proposed engineering and professional services for the 
design and bidding of the trail improvements, along with assisting the City in drafting easement 
documents for the trail. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 

The following tasks will be completed by SEH for the project as part of this agreement: 
 

Task 1 Final Design, Specifications and Prepare Bidding Documents 
Task 2 Easement Documents 
Task 3 Bidding Services 

 
A task hour budget is attached to this letter. The task hour budget outlines detailed information and 
estimated hours for each task. 
 
SCHEDULE 

Scope and schedules may change based on approvals by the City, County, State, or other involved 
agencies. It is anticipated that the final design will commence in December 2023 with an anticipated 
bidding/award early spring, 2024. 
 
FEE 

The lump sum fee for this scope of work is $27,800 including reimbursable expenses.  
 
If these proposed services are acceptable to you, please sign the attached SLA, keep a copy for your file, 
and return a scanned copy to our office. We look forward to working with you on this project. 
 



Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Council 
November 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC. 

 
 
Justin Black, PE 
Project Manager 
(Lic. MN) 
 
jb 
Enclosures 
\\sp-pz1.sehinc.com\pzprojects1\ko\o\oliva\162141\1-genl\10-setup-cont\03-proposal\final design\srts ph 2 scope of services ltr.docx 



FAIRVIEW AVE

T.
H.

 7
1

PARK AVE

ASH AVE

12
TH

 S
T

OAK AVE

11
TH

 S
T

10
TH

 S
T

9T
H 

ST

8T
H 

ST

PINE AVE

13
TH

 S
T

CHESNUT AVE

3R
D 

ST

2N
D 

ST

5T
H 

ST

4T
H 

ST

3R
D 

ST

OAK AVE

ASH AVE

HILLCREST AVE

PRIMROSE LN

NE
ST

ER
 S

T

7T
H 

ST

DEPUE AVE

PINE CIRCLEPINE AVE 14
TH

 S
T

CHESNUT AVE

BIRCH AVE

15
TH

 S
T

VIKING DR

13
TH

 S
T 

/ T
H 

71

PARK AVE

BAYBERRY  AVE

FAIRVIEW AVE

14
TH

 S
T

15
TH

 S
T

13
 1

/2
TH

 ST

GREEN   CIRCLE

6T
H 

ST

FAIRVIEW AVE

BAYBERRY AVE

BIRCH AVE

GO
LF

 D
R

11/20/2023

Sa
ve

: 1
2/

27
/2

01
9 

2:
10

 P
M

 d
bo

gg
es

s 
Pl

ot
: 1

1/
15

/2
02

3 
5:

15
 P

M
 P

:\K
O

\O
\O

liv
a\

C
om

m
on

\S
af

e 
R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
l P

ha
se

 2
\S

af
e 

R
ou

te
s 

to
 S

ch
oo

l 1
1-

15
-1

8.
dw

g

140876
ACTIVE LIVING TRAIL PHASE 2

OLIVIA, MINNESOTA

PHASE 1 SIDEWALK

0

feetscale

200 400200

100

PHASE 2 TRAIL

SIDEWALK COMPLETED
AS PART OF MnDOT HWY
71 PROJECT

PHASE 1 TRAIL

PHONE: 800.838.8666
1390 HWY. 15 S.
SUITE 200, PO BOX 308
HUTCHINSON, MN 55350
www.sehinc.com

FILE NO.

DATE:



Project :
Location:

Date:

Black Lyngaas Brinkman Pomplun

Sr. Engr Grad Engr Admin Tech Lead Technician
PE TOTALS

6.0 6.0
2.0 2.0
1.0 4.0 5.0

2.0 2.0
1.0 8.0 9.0
1.0 1.0 2.0
1.0 88.0 12.0 101.0
1.0 8.0 1.0 10.0
1.0 1.0 2.0
4.0 2.0 6.0

2.0 1.0 3.0
4.0 4.0
4.0 4.0

3.0 6.0 9.0
4.0 4.0 1.0 9.0
2.0 2.0 2.0 6.0
27.0 131.0 6.0 16.0 180.0

3.0 3.0
2.0 2.0

2.0 4.0 6.0
2.0 4.0 0.0 5.0 11.0

1.0 2.0 3.0
1.0 2.0 1.0 4.0

1.0 4.0 5.0
2.0 1.0 3.0

1.0 6.0 8.0 0.0 15.0

TOTAL PROJECT FEE  $          27,800.00 

Prepare project specifications

 $                                         24,200.00 

Street Typical Section / Pavement Section Review

Statement of Estimated Quantities and Tabulations 
Prepare opinion of estimated project costs

TOTAL TASK FEE

City Staff and County Staff Review Meeting (60%, 90%)
QAQC of construction plans, specifications and quantities

SUBTOTAL HOURS

Task 3 - Bidding Services

 $                                           1,700.00 

SUBTOTAL HOURS
TOTAL TASK FEE

Meetings with residents and project stakeholders

Task 2 - Easement Documents 

Project Management / Project Schedule Management 

DETAILED TASK HOUR BUDGET /  COST ANALYSIS

SRTS Trail Phase 2

Monday, November 20, 2023
Olivia, MN

Labor Hours

Task 1 - Final Design, Specifications and Preparing Bid Documents

Traffic Control and Signing

Coordination with State Aid Office

Corridor Modeling for trail grading limits 
ADA Ped Ramp Design

Meeting with property owners regarding easements (2 meetings)

Final Sketch plans of easements 
Easement Descriptions for City Attorney

Administer bid opening and review / tabulate bids

Prepare plan sheets and construction notes (review & update)

Utility Meeting and correspondence regarding design details for the project
Prepare SWPPP and Turf Establishment Plan

Federal Aid / State Aid Comment Response and Coordination

TOTAL TASK FEE  $                                           1,900.00 

Prepare Ad and Bid Documents for upload to Qwest CDN

Answer Contractor Questions and Issue Addendum as Needed

Prepare contracts and attend city council meeting for award

SUBTOTAL HOURS

Page 1 of 1



 
 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Letter Agreement - 1 City of Olivia, Minnesota/Olivia EDA 
Affirmative Action, Equal Opportunity Employer  (Rev. 11.08.18aa) 

Supplemental Letter Agreement 

 
In accordance with the Master Agreement for Professional Services between City of Olivia, Minnesota/Olivia EDA 
(“Client”), and Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. (“Consultant”), effective January 1, 2020, this Supplemental Letter 
Agreement dated November 20, 2023, authorizes and describes the scope, schedule, and payment conditions for 
Consultant’s work on the Project described as: Safe Routes to School Trail Project - Phase 2. 
 
 

Client’s Authorized Representative: Elizabeth Torkelson, City Administrator 

Address: 1009 West Lincoln Ave, Olivia, MN, 56277 

Telephone: 320.523.2361 email: etorkelson@olivia.mn.us 

  

Project Manager: Justin Black 

Address: 1390 Highway 15 South, Suite 208, PO Box 308, Hutchinson, MN 55350 

Telephone: 952.913.0702 email: jblack@sehinc.com 

 
 
Scope: The Services to be provided by Consultant: 
 
Scope includes engineering and professional services for the design and bidding of the trail improvements, along 
with assisting the City in drafting easement documents for the trail, as indicated in the attached letter proposal 
dated November 20, 2023. 
 
Schedule: We will begin our services upon receiving a signed copy of this Agreement. 
 
Payment: The lump sum fee for SEH’s services is $27,800 including expenses and equipment. The estimated fee 
for each Task is as indicated in the attached letter dated November 20, 2023. 
 
The payment method, basis, frequency and other special conditions are set forth in attached Exhibit A-2.  
 
Other Terms and Conditions: Other or additional terms contrary to the Master Agreement for Professional 
Services that apply solely to this project as specifically agreed to by signature of the Parties and set forth herein: 
None. 
 
 
 
 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc.  City of Olivia, Minnesota/Olivia EDA 

By: 

[[DocuSignSignature_1]] 

 By: [[DocuSignSignature_2]] 

Full Name: 
Title: 

Justin Black 
Principal/Client Service Manager  

Full Name: 
Title: 

[[DocuSignFullName_2]] 
[[DocuSignTitle_2]] 

 
  



 
 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. Letter Agreement - 2 City of Olivia, Minnesota/Olivia EDA 
  (Rev. 11.08.18aa) 

Exhibit A-2 

to Supplemental Letter Agreement 

Between City of Olivia, Minnesota/Olivia EDA (Client) 

and 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc. (Consultant) 

Dated November 20, 2023 
 

Payments to Consultant for Services and Expenses 

Using the Lump Sum Basis Option 
 
The Agreement for Professional Services is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of 
the parties: 

A. Lump Sum Basis Option 

The Client and Consultant select the Lump Sum Basis for Payment for services provided by Consultant. 
During the course of providing its services, Consultant shall be paid monthly based on Consultant’s estimate 
of the percentage of the work completed. Necessary expenses and equipment are provided as a part of 
Consultant’s services and are included in the initial Lump Sum amount for the agreed upon Scope of Work. 
Total payments to Consultant for work covered by the Lump Sum Agreement shall not exceed the Lump Sum 
amount without written authorization from the Client. 

The Lump Sum amount includes compensation for Consultant’s services and the services of Consultant’s 
Consultants, if any for the agreed upon Scope of Work. Appropriate amounts have been incorporated in the 
initial Lump Sum to account for labor, overhead, profit, expenses and equipment charges. The Client agrees 
to pay for other additional services, equipment, and expenses that may become necessary by amendment to 
complete Consultant’s services at their normal charge out rates as published by Consultant or as available 
commercially. 

B. Expenses Not Included in the Lump Sum 

The following items involve expenditures made by Consultant employees or professional consultants on 
behalf of the Client and shall be paid for as described in this Agreement. 

1. Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Client. 

2. Other special expenses required in connection with the Project. 

3. The cost of special consultants or technical services as required. The cost of subconsultant services 
shall include actual expenditure plus 10% markup for the cost of administration and insurance. 

 
The Client shall pay Consultant monthly for expenses not included in the Lump Sum amount. 

 





1 
 
 

 
POLE ATTACHMENT 

AGREEMENT 

(Not for Attachment of  

Small Wireless Facilities) 

 

 This Communication Facility Pole Attachment Licensing Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) made and entered into this ______ by and between the City of Olivia, a Minnesota 
municipal corporation acting through its Public Utility Commission, with its principal place of 
business 1009 West Lincoln Ave Olivia, MN 56277 (hereinafter called “City”), and [COMPANY 
NAME], with its principal place of [COMPANY ADDRESS], (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Licensee”). 

 
Recitals 

 

A. Whereas, Licensee proposes to install and maintain Communications Facilities and 
associated communications equipment on City’s Poles to provide Communications 
Services to the public; and 

 
B. Whereas, City is willing, when it may lawfully do so, to issue one or more Permits 

authorizing the placement or installation of Licensee’s Attachments on City’s Poles, 
provided that City may refuse, on a nondiscriminatory basis, to issue a Permit where there 
is insufficient Capacity or for reasons relating to safety, reliability, generally applicable 
engineering purposes, and/or any other Applicable Standard; and 

 
C. Whereas, City and Licensee entered into a Pole Attachment Agreement dated [DATE] and 

in lieu of amending that agreement, the Parties have agreed to and hereby terminate the 
original agreement effective [DATE] and enter into this new Pole Attachment Agreement 
effective [DATE], without further documentation or action by the parties. 

 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions and 

remuneration herein provided, and the rights and obligations set out below the parties agree as 
follows: 

 
Article 1 - Definitions 

 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms, phrases, words, and their 
derivations, shall have the meaning given below, unless more specifically defined within a 
specific Article or Paragraph of this Agreement.  When not inconsistent with the context, 
words used in the present tense include the future and past tense, and words in the singular 
number include the plural number.  The words “shall” and “will” are mandatory and “may” 
is permissive. Words not defined shall be given their common and ordinary meaning. 

 
1.1 Affiliate:  when used in relation to Licensee, means another entity that owns or 
controls, is owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership or control with 
Licensee. 



2 
 
 

 

1.2 Applicable Standards:  means all applicable engineering and safety standards 
governing the installation, maintenance, and operation of facilities and the performance of 
all work in or around electric City Facilities and includes the most current versions of 
National Electric Safety Code (“NESC”), the National Electrical Code (“NEC’), the 
regulations of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”), as well as 
the engineering and safety standards established by the City, and communicated in writing, 
each of which is incorporated by reference in this Agreement, and/or other reasonable 
safety and engineering requirements of City or other federal, state, or local authority with 
jurisdiction over City Facilities. 

 
1.3 Assigned Space:  means space on City Poles that can be used, as defined by the 
Applicable Standards, for the attachment or placement of wires, cables and associated 
equipment for the provision of Communications Service. The neutral zone or safety space 
is not considered Assigned Space. 
 
1.4 Attaching Entity:  means any public or private entity, other than the City, or 
Licensee, who, pursuant to a license agreement with City, places an Attachment on City’s 
Pole. 
 
1.5 Attachment(s):  means, for permitting purposes, each point of contact between 
Licensee’s Communications Facilities and the Poles, whether placed directly on the Poles 
or overlashed onto an existing Attachment, but does not include a Riser or a service drop 
attached to a single Pole where Licensee has an existing Attachment on such Pole.  Such 
Attachment(s) shall include, without limitation, the following points of strain: down guys, 
main line attachments, and any other attachment that could shorten the life cycle of the 
pole, as specified by City.  For rental rate purposes, an Attachment is the horizontal, bolted 
strand attachment occupying one foot of usable, vertical space on a Pole or a p-hook/j-hook 
attachment on a drop pole occupying one foot of vertical space. Any needs larger than one 
foot vertical shall pay a multiplied rate per foot.  
 
1.6 Capacity:  means the ability of a Pole to accommodate an Attachment based on 
Applicable Standards, including space and loading considerations. 
 
1.7 City Facilities:  means all personal property and real property owned or controlled 
by City, including but not limited to Poles and anchors. 

 
1.8 Climbing Space:  means that portion of a Pole’s surface and surrounding space that 
is free from encumbrances to enable City employees and contractors to safely climb, access, 
and work on City Facilities and equipment. 
 
1.9 Common Space:  means space on City Poles that is not used for the placement 
horizontal of wires or cables but which jointly benefits all users of the Poles by supporting 
the underlying structure and/or providing safety clearance between attaching entities and 
electric Utility Facilities. 
 



3 
 
 

1.10 Communications Facilities:  means wire or cable facilities including but not 
limited to fiber optic, copper and/or coaxial cables or wires utilized to provide 
Communications Service including any and all associated equipment. Unless otherwise 
specified by the parties, the term “Communications Facilities” does not include Pole 
mounted antennas, receivers or transceivers. 
 
1.11 Communications Service: any lawful communication services:  means the 
transmission or receipt of wireless, voice, video, data, Internet, or other forms of digital or 
analog signals over Communications Facilities. 
 

1.12 Joint Use Pole:  means a pole conforming to the latest specifications of the 
American Standards Association. 
 
1.13 Licensee:  means [COMPANY NAME], its authorized successors and assignees. 
 
1.14 Make-Ready Work: means all work that City reasonably determines to be required 
to accommodate Licensee’s Communications Facilities and/or to comply with all 
Applicable Standards.  Such work includes, but is not limited to, Pre-Construction Survey, 
rearrangement and/or transfer of City Facilities or existing Attachments, inspections, 
engineering work, permitting work, tree trimming (other than tree trimming performed for 
normal maintenance purposes), pole replacement and construction. Make-Ready Work 
does not include the correction of pre-existing safety violations caused by another party.  
Such preexisting violations shall be corrected at the expense of the Attaching Entity that 
caused such violation or the City, if the City caused the violation.  If it cannot be determined 
who caused the violation, then the costs will be shared by any Attaching Entity which 
reasonably might have caused the violation as determined by the City. 
 
1.15 Midspan:  means the section of conductor, cable, or messenger wire located 
between two poles. 
 
1.16 National Electric Safety Code (NESC):  means the current edition published by 
the Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) as may be amended or 
supplemented from time-to-time. 
 
1.17 National Electric Code (NEC):  means the current edition published by the 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) as may be amended or supplemented from 
time-to-time. 
 
1.18 Occupancy:  means the use or specific reservation of Assigned Space for 
Attachments on a City Pole. 

 
1.19 Overlash:  means to place an additional wire or cable Communications Facility 
onto an existing Attachment. A midspan antenna is considered an overlash. 
 
1.20 Pedestals/Vaults/Enclosures:  means above- or below-ground housings that are 
not attached to City Poles but are used to enclose a cable/wire splice, power supplies, 



4 
 
 

amplifiers, passive devices, and/or to provide a service connection point. 
 

1.21 Permit:  means written or electronic authorization (Appendix B) by City for 
Licensee to make or maintain Attachments to specific City Poles pursuant to the 
requirements of this Agreement. 
 
1.22 Pole:  means a pole owned or controlled by City that is used for the distribution of 
electricity and/ or Communications Service and is capable of supporting Attachments for 
Communications Facilities. 
 

1.23 Post-Construction Inspection:  means the inspection performed by City to 
determine and verify that the Attachments have been made in accordance with Applicable 
Standards and the Permit. 
 
1.24 Pre-Construction Survey:  means all work or operations required by Applicable 
Standards and/or City to determine the Make-Ready Work necessary to accommodate 
Licensee’s Communications Facilities on a Pole. Such work includes, but is not limited to, 
field inspection. The Pre-Construction Survey shall be coordinated with the City and include 
Licensee’s representative. 
 
1.25 Reserved Capacity:  means capacity or space on a Pole that City has identified as 
reserved for its own future City requirements at the time the Licensee’s application is 
submitted, including the installation of communications circuits for operation of City’s 
systems. 
 
1.26 Riser:  means metallic or plastic encasement materials placed vertically on the Pole 
to guide and protect wires and cables. 

 
1.27 Service Drop:  The overhead service conductors from the last pole or other aerial 
support up to, and including the splices (if any), connecting to the service-entrance 
conductors at the building or other structure. 
 
1.28 Tag:  means to place distinct markers (legible from the ground) on wires and cables, 
coded by color or other means specified by City and/or applicable federal, state or local 
regulations, that will readily identify the type of Attachment (e.g., cable TV, telephone, 
high- speed broadband data, public safety) and its owner. 

 
Article 2 - Term of Agreement 

 

2.1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective [DATE] and, if not 
terminated in accordance with other provisions of this Agreement, shall continue in effect 
for a term of five (5) years, and shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms 
unless either party gives to the other party written notice of an intention to terminate this 
Agreement at least ninety (90) calendar days prior to the end of any term. 

 
2.2 Survival of Obligations. The parties’ indemnity obligations shall continue after 



5 
 
 

termination of this Agreement with respect to any claims or demands related to Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities, as provided for in Article 17 (Liability and Indemnification), 
up to applicable statutes of limitations. 

 
Article 3 - Scope of Agreement 

 

3.1 Grant of License.  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, City grants 
Licensee a revocable, nonexclusive license authorizing Licensee to install and maintain 
permitted Attachments to City’s Poles. 
 
3.2 Parties Bound by Agreement.  Licensee and City agree to be bound by all 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 

3.3 Permit Issuance Conditions.  City will issue one or more Permit(s) in accordance 
with the “Whereas Clause B” set forth in the Recitals Section of this Agreement. 
 
3.4 Assigned Space.  All communication companies are placed on the poles in 
accordance with NESC standards for roadways and alleys.  Each communication company 
has a pole space 1 foot vertically away from each other company.  The minimum height 
allowed for any equipment is 14 feet to a maximum of 25 feet on a pole with low or high 
voltage.  This height will vary in different situations.  The City retains the right to raise that 
in accordance with the needs. Any equipment that needs to be placed outside of this range 
must be approved by the City Administrator, City Utility Account Manager, and City 
Electric Superintendent. Access to Assigned Space on City Poles will be made available to 
Licensee with the understanding that certain Poles may be subject to the City’s Reserved 
Capacity for future service use, as described in Paragraph 1.26.  On giving Licensee at least 
sixty (60) calendar days prior notice, the City may reclaim such Assigned Space anytime 
during the period following the installation of Licensee’s Attachment in which this 
Agreement is effective if required for the City’s future use.  The City shall give Licensee 
the option to remove its Attachment(s) from the affected Pole(s) or to pay for the cost of 
any Make-Ready Work needed to expand capacity so that Licensee can maintain its 
Attachment on the affected Pole(s).  The allocation of the cost of any such Make-Ready 
Work (including the transfer, rearrangement, or relocation of third-party Attachments) shall 
be determined in accordance with Article 10 (Modification and/or Replacements).  
 
3.5 No Interest in Property.  No use, however lengthy, of any City Facilities, and no 
payment of any fees or charges required under this Agreement, shall create or vest in 
Licensee any easement or other ownership or property right of any nature in any portion of 
such Facilities.  Neither this Agreement, nor any Permit granted under this Agreement, 
shall constitute an assignment of any of City’s rights to City Facilities. Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Licensee shall, at all times, be and remain a 
licensee only. 
 
3.6 Licensee’s Right to Attach.  Nothing in this Agreement, other than a Permit issued 
pursuant to Article 7 (Permit Application Procedures), shall be construed as granting 
Licensee any right to attach Licensee’s Communications Facilities to any specific Pole, 



6 
 
 

except as otherwise required herein. 
 
3.7 City’s Rights over Poles.  The parties agree that this Agreement does not in any 
way limit City’s right to locate, operate, maintain, or remove its Poles in the manner that 
will best enable it to fulfill its service requirements or to comply with any federal, state, or 
local legal requirement. 
 
3.8 City’s Rights to Exclude Poles.  The parties agree that this Agreement allows the 
City to exclude any of its poles from joint use consideration, on a non-discriminatory basis. 

 
3.9 Expansion of Capacity.  City will take reasonable steps to expand Pole Capacity, 
at Licensee’s sole expense, when necessary to accommodate Licensee’s request for 
Attachment. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed to require City to install, retain, extend, or maintain any Pole for use when such 
Pole is not needed for City’s own service requirements. 

 
3.10 Other Agreements.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, nothing in 
this Agreement shall limit, restrict, or prohibit City from fulfilling any agreement or 
arrangement regarding its Poles into which City has previously entered, or may enter in the 
future, with others not party to this Agreement. 
 

3.11 Appendices.  The parties agree that the rules and practices set out in the appendices 
are subject to reasonable change by City from time to time following a 30-day written 
notification to Licensee. 
 
3.12 Permitted Uses.  This Agreement is limited to the uses specifically stated in the 
recitals set forth above and no other use shall be allowed without City’s express written 
consent to such use.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require City to allow 
Licensee to use City’s Poles after the termination of this Agreement. 
 
3.13 Overlashing.  The following provisions apply to Overlashing: 

 
(a) Installation of an overlash cable or wire to an existing attachment 

on a 100 kilovolt (kV) and above transmission pole (wood or steel 
construction) is strictly prohibited. 

 
(b) Permit Required.  Licensee shall obtain a Permit for each 

Overlashing, in accordance with the requirements of Article 7 
(Permit Application Procedures).  Absent such authorization, 
Overlashing constitutes an unauthorized Attachment and is subject 
to removal or, at City’s discretion, imposition of an Unauthorized 
Attachment fee, as specified in Appendix A. 

 
(c) Permitted Overlashing.  City shall not withhold Permits for such 

Overlashing if it can be done consistent with Paragraph 3.3 (Permit 
Issuance Conditions).  Overlashing performed pursuant to this 



7 
 
 

Paragraph shall not increase the annual attachment fee paid by 
Licensee pursuant to Appendix A.  Licensee, however, shall be 
responsible for all Make-Ready Work and other charges associated 
with the Overlashing but shall not be required to pay a separate 
annual attachment fee for such Overlashed Attachment. 

 
(d) Third Party Overlashing.  If Overlashing is required to 

accommodate facilities of a third party, such third party must enter 
into a license agreement with the City and obtain Permits and must 
pay a separate Attachment Fee (Appendix A) as well as the costs of 
all necessary Make-Ready Work required to accommodate the 
Overlashing.  No such Permits to third parties may be granted by the 
City allowing Overlashing of Licensee’s Communications Facilities 
unless Licensee has consented in writing to such Overlashing.  
Overlashing performed under this Paragraph shall not increase the 
fees and charges paid by Licensee pursuant to Appendix A.  Nothing 
in this Agreement shall prevent Licensee from seeking a contribution 
from an Overlashing third party to defray fees and charges paid by 
Licensee. 

 
(e) Make Ready Work.  Make Ready Work procedures set forth in 

Article 8 (Make- Ready Work/Installation) shall apply, as necessary, 
to all Overlashing. 

 

3.14 Enclosures.  Licensee shall not place Pedestals, Vaults and/or other 
Enclosures on or within four (4) feet of any Pole or other City Facilities without the 
City’s prior written permission.  If permission is granted to place a Pedestal, Vault 
and/or other Enclosure within four (4) feet of a City Pole, all such installations shall 
be per the Specifications in Appendix B of this Agreement. Such permission shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.  If the City installs or relocates City Facilities within 
four (4) feet from Licensee’s existing Pedestal, vault, and/or enclosure, Licensee 
shall not be in violation per Article 5.5 (Violation of Specifications) of this 
Agreement. 

 
Article 4 - Fees and Charges 

 

4.1 Payment of Fees and Charges.  Licensee shall pay to City the fees and charges 
specified in Appendix A, subject to change, no more than once per year, and shall comply 
with the terms and conditions specified in this Agreement. 
 
4.2 Payment Period.  Unless otherwise expressly provided, Licensee shall pay any 
invoice it receives from City pursuant to this Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days 
after City issues the invoice. 
 
4.3 Billing of Attachment Fee.  The annual rental period shall commence from January 
1st through December 31st of each year.  The City shall invoice Licensee, quarterly, for the 



8 
 
 

per- pole attachment fee starting on or about January 1st which shall include a total number 
of City Poles to which Licensee’s Communications Facilities are attached.  Attachment 
fees for permits issued during the rental period shall commence on the date of permit 
approval and be pro-rated for the remainder of the current rental period. 

 

4.4 Electrical Service for Pole Attachments. If Licensee requires electricity to power 
any Pole Attachment, the City shall supply such electricity pursuant to its then current Pole 
Attachment electrical service rates. Licensee agrees that such rate may be based on metered 
usage, per device, or both, as determined by the City. Further, the City shall install, at 
Licensee’s expense, all equipment required to provide such electrical service. Prior to any 
such installation, Licensee shall deposit with the City an amount equal to the estimated cost 
of the labor and equipment required to complete the installation, as determined by the City.  
 
4.5 Refunds.  No fees and charges specified in Appendix A shall be refunded on account 
of any surrender of a Permit granted under this Agreement, nor shall any refund be owed if 
a Pole is not used or abandoned by City. 
 
4.6 Late Charge.  Late charges will apply consistent with City policy at the time of 
delinquency. 
 
4.7 Payment for Work.  Licensee will be responsible for payment to City for all work 
that City or City’s contractors perform pursuant to this Agreement, reasonably required, to 
accommodate Licensee’s Communications Facilities, as per Licensee’s request or as 
otherwise permitted by this Agreement. 
 
4.8 Advance Payment.  At its discretion, City may require that Licensee pay in advance 
all reasonable and necessary costs, for Make-Ready Work expenses, in connection with the 
initial installation or rearrangement of Licensee’s Communications Facilities pursuant to 
the procedures set forth in Articles 7 (Permit Application Procedures) and 8 (Make-Ready 
Work/Installation) below. 
 

4.9 True-Up.  Whenever City, in its reasonable discretion, requires advance payment 
of estimated expenses prior to undertaking an activity on behalf of Licensee and the actual 
cost of the activity exceeds the advance payment of estimated expenses, Licensee agrees to 
pay City for the difference in cost. To the extent that the actual cost of the activity is less 
than the estimated cost, City agrees to refund Licensee the difference in cost. 
 
4.10 Determination of Charges.  Wherever this Agreement requires Licensee to pay 
for work done or contracted by City, including but not limited to Make Ready Work, 
miscellaneous (such as joint trench work) and or inspection charges, the charge for such 
work shall be based on actual costs and include all reasonable material, labor, engineering, 
administrative, and applicable overhead costs.  When requested, City agrees to provide 
additional documentation of the costs.  If Licensee was required to perform work and fails 
to perform such work, necessitating completion of the work by City, City may charge an 
additional ten percent (10%) to its costs. 
 



9 
 
 

4.11 Work Performed by City.  Wherever this Agreement requires City to perform any 
work, City, at its sole discretion, may utilize its employees or contractors, or any 
combination of the two, to perform such work. 
 
4.12 Default for Nonpayment.  Nonpayment of any undisputed amount due under this 
Agreement beyond sixty (60) days shall constitute a material default of this Agreement, 
except as otherwise agreed to by the parties. 

 
Article 5 - Specifications 

 

5.1 Installation/Maintenance of Communications Facilities.  When a Permit is 
issued pursuant to this Agreement, Licensee’s Communications Facilities shall be installed 
and maintained in accordance with the requirements and specifications of Appendix B. All 
of Licensee’s Communications Facilities must comply with all Applicable Standards.  
Licensee shall be responsible for the installation and maintenance of its Communications 
Facilities. Licensee shall, at its own expense, make and maintain its Attachment(s) in safe 
condition and good repair, in accordance with all Applicable Standards.  Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Licensee shall not be required to update or 
upgrade its Attachments if they met Applicable Standards at the time they were made, 
unless such updates or upgrades are required by any applicable NESC, NEC or OSHA 
Standard.  Licensee shall exercise commercially reasonable efforts to avoid damage to 
City’s poles and facilities and the facilities and attachments of third parties.  Licensee is 
not required to incur any costs associated with the correction of any noncompliance caused 
by an Attaching Entity or City unless there is a reasonable likelihood, in the opinion of the 
City that the noncompliance was caused by the Licensee. 
 
5.2 Tagging.  Licensee shall Tag all of its Communications Facilities as specified in 
Appendix B and/or applicable federal, state, and local regulations upon installation of such 
Facilities.  Within one year of execution of this Agreement, Licensee shall Tag any un-
tagged Communications Facilities owned by Licensee that were on City Poles on the 
effective date of this Agreement.  Failure to provide proper Tagging will be considered a 
violation of the Applicable Standards. 

 

5.3 Interference.  Licensee shall not allow its Communications Facilities to impair the 
ability of City or any third party to use City’s Poles, nor shall Licensee allow its 
Communications Facilities to interfere with the operation of any City Facilities or third-
party facilities.  The City shall take reasonable action to prevent any new facilities from 
interfering with Licensee’s use of the Poles or the operation of its facilities. Equipment that 
requires more space than the one foot, that cannot be placed on the ground, shall be placed 
on the opposite side of the pole to not interfere with other communication or City facilities.  
Equipment mounted on street light poles shall be mounted opposite the light arm and 
fixture or above the light fixture in line with the pole to not interfere with the light to 
ground. 
 
5.4 Protective Equipment.  Licensee and its employees and contractors shall utilize 
and install adequate protective equipment to ensure the safety of people and facilities.  



10 
 
 

Licensee shall, at its own expense, install protective devices designed to handle the electric 
voltage and current carried by City’s facilities in the event of a contact with such facilities. 

 
5.5 Violation of Specifications.  If Licensee’s Communications Facilities, or any part 
of them, are installed, used, or maintained in a manner that is not in compliance with 
Applicable Standards, and Licensee has not corrected such noncompliance within thirty 
(30) calendar days from receipt of written notice of the violation(s) from City, or such 
longer time as may be necessary under the circumstances, City, at its option, may correct 
such conditions.  If an Attachment is out of compliance as a result of a change in standards 
after such Attachment was attached, then Licensee will not be required to correct such 
noncompliance until the next time Licensee modifies the Attachment.  City will attempt to 
notify Licensee in writing prior to performing such work whenever practicable.  When City 
reasonably believes, however, that such violation(s) pose an immediate threat to the safety 
of any person, interfere with the performance of City’s service obligations, or present an 
immediate threat to the physical integrity of City Facilities, City may perform such work 
and/or take such action as it reasonably deems necessary without first giving written notice 
to Licensee.  As soon as practicable afterward, City will advise Licensee of the work 
performed or the action taken.  Licensee shall be responsible for all actual and reasonable 
costs incurred by City in taking action pursuant to this Paragraph, except as provided in 
Paragraph 5.1. 
 
5.6 Restoration of City Service.  City’s service restoration requirements shall take 
precedence over any and all work operations of Licensee on City’s Poles. 

 
5.7 Attachment Timeframe.  If Licensee does not exercise their right to attach 
pursuant to an applicable Permit(s) within ninety (90) calendar days of the effective date of 
permit approval, or any extension to such Permit(s), City may, but shall have no obligation 
to, use the space scheduled for Licensee’s Attachment(s) for its own needs or make the 
space available to other Attaching Entities.  In such instances, City shall endeavor to make 
other space available to Licensee, upon written application under Article 7 (Permit 
Application Procedures), as soon as reasonably possible and subject to all requirements of 
this Agreement, including the Make- Ready Work provisions. 
 

5.8 Removal of Abandoned Attachments.  At its sole expense, Licensee shall remove 
any of its Attachments or any part thereof that are abandoned (Abandoned Attachment) as 
provided in this Paragraph 5.8 (Removal of Abandoned Attachments).  An Abandoned 
Attachment that Licensee has failed to remove as required in this paragraph shall constitute 
an unauthorized Attachment and is subject to the Unauthorized Attachment Fee specified 
in Appendix A, unless Licensee is paying an Attachment Fee for such Attachment.  Except 
as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Licensee shall remove Abandoned Attachments 
within one (1) year of the Attachment becoming abandoned, unless Licensee receives 
written notice from City that removal is necessary to accommodate City’s or another 
Attaching Entity’s use of the affected Pole(s), in which case Licensee shall remove the 
Abandoned Attachment within sixty (60) days of receiving the notice.  Where Licensee has 
received a Permit to Overlash an Abandoned Attachment, such Abandoned Attachment 
may remain in place until City notifies Licensee that removal is necessary to accommodate 



11 
 
 

City’s or another Attaching Entity’s use of the affected Pole(s). 

 
Article 6 - Private and Regulatory Compliance 

 

6.1 Necessary Authorizations.  Before Licensee occupies any of City’s Poles, 
Licensee shall obtain from the appropriate authority, any required authorization to 
construct, operate, or maintain its Communications Facilities on public or private property.  
City retains the right to require evidence that appropriate authorization has been obtained 
before any Permit is issued to Licensee.  Licensee’s obligations under this Article include, 
but are not limited to, its obligation to obtain and pay for all necessary approvals to occupy 
public/private rights-of-way and all necessary licenses and authorizations to provide the 
services that it provides over its Communications Facilities.  Licensee shall defend, 
indemnify, and reimburse City for all losses, costs, and expenses, which City may incur as 
a result of claims by governmental bodies, owners of private property, or other persons, 
that Licensee does not have sufficient rights or authority to attach Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities on City’s Poles or to provide particular services.  The defense, 
indemnification and reimbursement shall be subject to the procedures set forth in 
Article 17.3. 

 
6.2 Lawful Purpose and Use.  Licensee’s Communications Facilities must at all times 
serve a lawful purpose, and the use of such Facilities must comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and Applicable Standards. 
 
6.3 Non-Forfeiture of City’s Rights.  No Permit granted under this Agreement shall 
extend, or be deemed to extend, to any of City’s Poles to the extent that Licensee’s 
Attachment would result in a forfeiture of City’s rights.  Any Permit that would result in 
forfeiture of City’s rights shall be deemed invalid as of the date that City granted it.  
Further, if any of Licensee’s existing Communications Facilities, whether installed 
pursuant to a valid Permit or not, would cause such forfeiture, Licensee shall promptly 
remove its Facilities upon receipt of written notice from City.  If Licensee does not remove 
its Communications Facilities in question within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice 
from City, City may at its option perform such removal at Licensee’s expense.  
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Licensee shall have the right to contest any such forfeiture 
before any of its rights are terminated, provided that Licensee shall defend and indemnify 
City for liability, costs, and expenses, that may accrue during Licensee’s challenge.  The 
defense, indemnification and reimbursement shall be subject to the procedures set forth in 
Article 17.3. 
 
6.4 Effect of Consent to Construction/Maintenance.  Consent by City to the 
construction or maintenance of any Attachments by Licensee shall not be deemed consent, 
authorization, or acknowledgment that Licensee has obtained all required authorizations 
with respect to such Attachment. 

 
Article 7 - Permit Application Procedures 

 

7.1 Permit Required.  Licensee shall not make any Attachments to any of City’s Poles 



12 
 
 

without first applying for and obtaining a Permit pursuant to the applicable requirements of 
Appendix B. 
 
7.2 Permits for Overlashing.  As set out in Paragraph 3.13 (Overlashing), Permits are 
required for any Overlashing allowed under this Agreement and Licensee, Licensee’s 
Affiliate or other third party, as applicable, shall pay any necessary Make-Ready Work 
costs to accommodate such Overlashing.  Any Overlashing shall take place within the 
communications space on a pole as indicated on Appendix B. 
 
7.3 Professional Certification.  At Licensee’s sole expense, a qualified and 
experienced professional engineer must certify the design.  In addition, a qualified and 
experienced individual, other than the contract installer, must verify that Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities were installed on the identified Poles in compliance with the 
design and standards in Paragraph 5.1 (Installation/Maintenance of Communications 
Facilities).  City, at its reasonable discretion, may waive the requirements of this Paragraph. 
 
7.4 City Review of Permit Application.  Upon receipt of a properly executed 
Application for Permit (Appendix B), which shall include the fees, Pre-Construction 
Survey, certified per Paragraph 7.3 (Professional Certification) above, and detailed plans 
for the proposed Attachments in the form specified, City will review the Permit Application 
and discuss any issues with Licensee, including engineering or Make-Ready Work 
requirements associated with the Permit Application.  City acceptance of the submitted 
design documents does not relieve Licensee of full responsibility for any errors and/or 
omissions in the engineering analysis.  Unless otherwise agreed, the Permit application 
process shall be consistent with the following timeline: 

 
(a) Review Period.  City shall review and respond to Permit Applications for 

routine installations as promptly as is reasonable with a goal of providing a 
response during normal circumstances of within thirty (30) days of receipt.  
For Permit Applications seeking Attachments to 50 or more Poles, the City 
will have an additional 15 working days to review.  The City’s response will 
either provide a written explanation as to why the Application is being 
denied, in whole or in part, or provide an estimate of the costs of all 
necessary Make-Ready Work. 

 
(b) Approval of Make Ready.  Upon receipt of City’s Make-Ready estimate, 

Licensee shall have fourteen (14) days to approve the estimate. 
 
(c) Completion of Make Ready Work.  City will complete routine Make-

Ready Work within ninety (90) days of receipt of payment.  If there are 
extenuating circumstances that make the necessary work more complicated 
or time- consuming, the City shall identify those factors in the Make-Ready 
estimate and the parties shall agree upon a reasonable timeframe for 
completion. 

 

(d) Tolling.  City may toll the time period for completion of Make-Ready Work 



13 
 
 

by written notice in order to respond to severe storms, natural disasters, or 
other emergency situations. 

 
7.5 Permit as Authorization to Attach.  Upon completion of any necessary Make-
Ready Work and receipt of payment for such work, City will sign and return the Permit 
Application, which shall serve as authorization for Licensee to make its Attachment(s). 

 
Article 8 - Make-Ready Work/Installation 

 

8.1 Estimate for Make-Ready Work.  If City determines that it can accommodate 
Licensee’s request for Attachment(s), including Overlashing of an existing Attachment, it 
will advise Licensee of any estimated Make-Ready Work charges necessary to 
accommodate the Attachment. 
 
8.2 Payment of Make-Ready Work.  Upon completion of the Make-Ready Work, City 
shall invoice Licensee for City’s cost of such Make-Ready Work.  Alternatively, City, at 
its discretion, may require payment in advance for Make-Ready Work based upon the 
estimated cost of such work.  In such case, upon completion, Licensee shall pay City’s cost 
of Make-Ready Work in accordance with Paragraph 4.10 (Determination of Charges) and 
trued up in accordance with Paragraph 4.9 (True-Up). 
 
8.3 Who May Perform Make-Ready Work.  Electric Make-Ready Work shall be 
performed only by City and/or a contractor authorized by City to perform such work.  If 
City cannot perform the Make-Ready Work to accommodate Licensee’s Communications 
Facilities within ninety (90) calendar days of Licensee’s request for Attachment(s), 
Licensee may seek permission from Utility for Licensee to employ a qualified contractor 
to perform such work. 
 
8.4 Scheduling of Make-Ready Work.  In performing all Make-Ready Work to 
accommodate Licensee’s Communications Facilities, City will endeavor to include such 
work in its normal work schedule.  If Licensee requests that the Make-Ready Work be 
performed on a priority basis or outside of City’s normal work hours, Licensee will pay 
any resulting increased costs.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require City 
to perform Licensee’s work before other scheduled work or City service restoration. 

 
8.5 Licensee’s Installation/Removal/Maintenance Work. 

 

(a) Cost and Standards.  All of Licensee’s installation, removal, and 
maintenance work, by either Licensee’s employees or authorized 
contractors, shall be performed at Licensee’s sole cost and expense, except 
as otherwise provided herein, in a good and workmanlike manner, and must 
not adversely affect the structural integrity of City’s Poles, or other 
Facilities or other Attaching Entity’s facilities or equipment.  All such work 
is subject to the insurance requirements of Article 19 (Insurance). 

 

(b) Regulatory Compliance.  All of Licensee’s installation, removal, and 



14 
 
 

maintenance work, either by its employees or authorized contractors, shall 
comply with all applicable regulations specified in Paragraph 5.1 
(Installation/Maintenance of Communications Facilities).  Licensee shall 
assure that any person installing, maintaining, or removing its 
Communications Facilities is fully qualified and familiar with all 
Applicable Standards, the provisions of Article 18 (Duties, Responsibilities, 
and Exculpation), and City of Olivia Specifications contained in Appendix 
B. 

 
Article 9 - Transfers 

 

9.1 Required Transfers of Licensee’s Communications Facilities.  If City 
reasonably determines that a transfer of Licensee’s Communications Facilities is necessary, 
City will require Licensee to perform such transfer within sixty (60) calendar days after 
receiving notice from City.  If Licensee fails to transfer its Facilities within sixty (60) 
calendar days after receiving such notice from City, City shall have the right to transfer 
Licensee’s Facilities using its personnel and/or contractors.  The costs of such transfers 
shall be apportioned as specified under Article 10 (Modifications and/or Replacements).  
City shall not be liable for damage to Licensee’s Facilities except to the extent provided in 
Paragraph 17.1 (Liability).  The written advance notification requirement of this Paragraph 
shall not apply in emergency situations.  In emergency situations, City shall provide such 
advance notice as is practical, given the urgency of the particular situation. City shall then 
provide written notice of any such actions taken within ten (10) days following the 
occurrence.  Irrespective of who owns Facilities that are Overlashed on to Licensee’s 
Attachments, Licensee is responsible for the transfer of such Facilities. 

 
Article 10 - Modifications and/or Replacements 

 

10.1 Licensee’s Action Requiring City Modification/Replacement.  If any Pole to 
which Licensee desires to make Attachment(s) has insufficient capacity, or otherwise 
cannot support or accommodate the additional facilities in accordance with all Applicable 
Standards, City will notify Licensee of the necessary Make-Ready Work, and associated 
costs, to provide an adequate Pole or Pole space including, but not limited to, replacement 
of the Pole and/or rearrangement or transfer of City’s Facilities, as well as the facilities of 
other Attaching Entities.  If Licensee elects to go forward with the necessary changes, 
subject to the provisions of Section 10.5(c), City may proceed with Make-Ready Work. 
Licensee shall pay to City the actual cost of the Make-Ready Work, performed by City, in 
accordance with Paragraph 4.9 (Determination of Charges).  City, in its reasonable 
discretion, may require advance payment. 
 
10.2 Licensee’s Action Requiring Modification to Existing Attachments.  City shall 
provide notice to other Attaching Entities (including Overlashers) concerning the 
relocation or rearrangement of their Attachments as a result of a new application for permit.  
City shall also provide a copy of the notice to the Licensee along with the contact 
information of existing attachers in order for Licensee to coordinate completion of the work 
in a timely manner.  Licensee will pay for all required work to accommodate Licensee’s 



15 
 
 

facilities.  City will notify other Attaching Entities of existing safety violations with an 
expectation that the violations will be corrected. 
 
All Attaching Entities shall cooperate with each other (including Overlashers) with respect 
to any relocation or rearrangement of Licensee’s facilities that may be reasonably required, 
as determined by City. 

 
10.3 Treatment of Multiple Requests for Same Pole.  If City receives Permit 
Applications for the same Pole from two or more prospective licensees within sixty (60) 
calendar days of the initial request, and accommodating their respective requests would 
require modification of the Pole or replacement of the Pole, City will allocate among such 
licensees the applicable costs associated with such modification or replacement. 
 
10.4 Guying.  The use of guying to accommodate Licensee’s Attachments shall be 
provided by, and at the expense of, Licensee and to the satisfaction of City.  Licensee shall 
not attach its guy wires to City’s anchors without prior written permission of City.  If 
permission is granted, Make-Ready charges may apply. 
 
10.5 Allocation of Costs.  The costs for any rearrangement or transfer of Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities or the replacement of a Pole (including any related costs for tree 
cutting or trimming required to clear the new location of City’s cables or wires) shall be 
allocated to City and/or Licensee and/or other Attaching Entity on the following basis: 

 
(a) Replacement/Modification Necessitated by City.  The City shall be 

responsible for the full costs related to any modification or replacement of a 
pole when necessitated by City requirements.  Prior to any replacement or 
modification, City shall provide Licensee written notification.  Licensee 
shall be responsible for costs associated with the rearrangement or transfer 
of Licensee’s Communications Facilities on the replacement pole. 

 
(b) Replacement/Modification Necessitated by Licensee.  If the modification 

or replacement of a Pole is necessitated by the requirements of Licensee, 
Licensee shall be responsible for the costs associated with the modification 
or replacement of the Pole as well as the costs associated with the transfer or 
rearrangement of any other Attaching Entity’s Communications Facilities.  
Licensee shall reimburse all affected Attaching Entities for their costs caused 
by the transfer or rearrangement of their Facilities.  City shall not be 
obligated in any way to enforce or administer Licensee’s responsibility for 
the costs associated with the transfer or rearrangement of another Attaching 
Entity’s Facilities pursuant to this Sub-Paragraph. 

 
(c) Additional Attachment.  If the modification or the replacement of a Pole 

is the result of an additional Attachment or the modification of an existing 
Attachment sought by an Attaching Entity other than City or Licensee, the 
Attaching Entity requesting the additional or modified Attachment shall bear 
the entire cost of the modification or replacement, as well as the costs for 



16 
 
 

rearranging or transferring Licensee’s Communications Facilities. 
 

10.6 City Not Required to Relocate.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 
require City to relocate its Attachments or to modify or replace its Poles for the benefit of 
Licensee, provided, however, any denial by City for modification of the Pole is based on 
nondiscriminatory standards of general applicability. 

 
Article 11 - Abandonment or Removal of City Facilities 

 

11.1 Notice of Abandonment or Removal of City Facilities.  If City desires at any 
time to abandon, remove, or underground any City Facilities to which Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities are attached, it shall give Licensee notice in writing to that 
effect at least ninety (90) calendar days prior to the date on which it intends to abandon or 
remove such City’s Facilities.  Notice may be limited to thirty (30) calendar days if City is 
required to remove or abandon its City Facilities as the result of the action of a third party 
and the lengthier notice period is not practical.  If, following the expiration of the thirty 
(30) or ninety (90) day period as applicable, Licensee has not yet removed and/or 
transferred all of its Communications Facilities, City shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to remove or transfer Licensee’s Communications Facilities at Licensee’s 
expense, subject to any applicable reimbursement clause in a Franchise Agreement, if one 
exists, between the Licensee and the City. City shall give Licensee prior written notice of 
any such removal or transfer of Licensee’s Facilities.  Licensee’s failure to remove its 
Facilities as required under this Paragraph shall subject Licensee to the fees listed in 
Appendix A. 

 
11.2 Option to Purchase Abandoned Poles.  Should City desire to abandon any Pole, 
City may, in its sole discretion, grant Licensee the option of purchasing such Pole at a rate 
negotiated with City.  

 
Article 12 - Removal of Licensee’s Facilities 

 

12.1 Removal on Expiration/Termination.  At the expiration or other termination of 
this Agreement or individual Permit(s), Licensee shall remove its Communications 
Facilities from the affected Poles at its own expense within sixty (60) calendar days.  If 
Licensee fails to remove such Facilities, City shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
remove or transfer such Facilities at Licensee’s expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if the parties are negotiating a replacement agreement in good faith, Licensee shall not be 
required to remove its Facilities whether or not this Agreement or individual Permit(s) have 
expired or been terminated. If City removes Licensee’s Facilities, City shall catalog the 
equipment removed, including the date, and store the equipment at City owned facility. 
City will provide notice to Licensee of the removal and where Licensee can retrieve the 
equipment as soon as practicable after removal and shall make the Equipment available to 
Licensee during normal business hours for up to ninety (90) days from the date of removal. 
City shall not have any responsibility for any loss, damage or excessive wear to Equipment 
while in City’s possession. 

 



17 
 
 

Article 13 - Termination of Permit 

 

13.1 Automatic Termination of Permit.  Any Permit issued pursuant to this Agreement 
shall automatically terminate when Licensee ceases to have authority to construct and 
operate its Communications Facilities on public or private property at the location of the 
particular Pole(s) covered by the Permit. 
 

13.2 Surrender of Permit.  Licensee may at any time surrender any Permit for 
Attachment(s) and remove its Communications Facilities from the affected Pole(s), 
provided, however, that Licensee shall notify City when the work is complete.  All such 
work is subject to the insurance requirements of Article 19 (Insurance).  No refund of any 
fees or costs will be made upon removal.  If Licensee surrenders such Permit pursuant to 
the provisions of this Article, but fails to remove its Attachments from City’s Facilities 
within sixty (60) calendar days thereafter, City shall have the right, but not the obligation, 
to remove Licensee’s Attachments at Licensee’s expense. 

 
Article 14 - Inspection of Licensee’s Facilities 

 

14.1 Inspections.  City may conduct an inventory to determine the number of Licensee’s 
billable attachments, no more than once every five (5) years.  Licensee shall pay its pro-
rata share, along with other Attaching Entities, for such inventory.  City may also conduct 
routine safety inspections of its Pole(s), including Attachments at any time.  The cost of 
safety inspection conducted at the same time as the inventory will be included in the pro-
rata cost indicated above.  Safety inspections conducted outside of an inventory count will 
be borne by the City.  Licensee shall correct all Attachments that Licensee caused to not 
be in compliance with Applicable Standards within sixty (60) calendar days of notification, 
or such longer period as may be necessary under the circumstances. 
 
14.2 Notice.  City will give Licensee reasonable advance written notice of such 
inspections, except in those instances in which safety considerations justify the need for 
such inspection without delay. 
 
14.3 No Liability.  Inspections performed under this Article, or the failure to do so, shall 
not impose upon City any liability of any kind whatsoever or to relieve Licensee of any 
responsibility, obligations, or liability, whether assumed under this Agreement or 
otherwise existing. 

 
Article 15 - Unauthorized Occupancy or Access 

 

15.1 Unauthorized Attachments.  If any of Licensee’s Attachments are found 
occupying any Pole for which no Permit has been issued, City shall issue a list of such 
Attachments to Licensee so that Licensee can verify that the Attachments belong to 
Licensee with an approved permit.  Licensee shall have - no longer than 90 calendar days 
or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties - to perform such verification and the City shall 
cooperate with Licensee in its efforts to verify the inventory.  City, without prejudice to 
its other rights or remedies under this Agreement, may assess an Unauthorized Access Fee, 



18 
 
 

as specified in Appendix A, in lieu of any back rent that may be owed.  Following 
agreement amongst the Parties as to the number of unauthorized attachments, Licensee 
shall pay such Fee within thirty (30) calendar days of City’s invoice.  City shall have the 
right, but not the obligation, to remove such Communications Facilities at Licensee’s 
expense. 

 
15.2 No Ratification of Unauthorized Use.  No act or failure to act by City with regard 
to any use shall be deemed as ratification of the unauthorized use.  Unless the parties agree 
otherwise, a Permit for a previously unauthorized Attachment shall not operate 
retroactively or constitute a waiver by City of any of its rights or privileges under this 
Agreement or otherwise, and Licensee shall remain subject to all obligations and liabilities 
arising out of or relating to its unauthorized use. 

 
Article 16 - Reporting Requirements 

 

16.1 Reporting. At the time that Licensee pays its annual attachment fee, Licensee shall 
also provide the following information to City: 
 
(a) An up-to-date electronic map depicting the locations of its Attachments, in 

a format specified by City. 
 
(b) All Attachments that have become abandoned during the relevant reporting 

period. The report shall identify the Pole on which the abandoned 
Attachment is located, describe the abandoned equipment, and indicate the 
approximate date the Attachment was abandoned. 

 
Article 17 - Liability and Indemnification 

 

17.1 Liability.  City reserves to itself the right to maintain and operate its Poles in the 
manner that will best enable it to fulfill its service requirements.  Licensee agrees to use 
City’s Poles at Licensee’s sole risk, except as otherwise provided herein.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, City shall exercise reasonable precaution to avoid damaging Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities and shall report to Licensee the occurrence of any such damage 
caused by its employees, agents or contractors.  Subject to Paragraph 17.5 (Municipal 
Liability Limits), as applicable, City agrees to reimburse Licensee for all reasonable costs 
incurred by Licensee for the physical repair of facilities damaged by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of City. 

 
17.2 Indemnification.  Licensee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City and 
its officials, officers, board members, council members, commissioners, representatives, 
employees, agents, and contractors against any and all liability, costs, damages, fines, taxes, 
special charges by others, penalties, payments (including third party payments made by City 
under any Workers Compensation Laws or under any plan for employees disability and death 
benefits), and expenses (Covered Claims) caused by any act, omission, failure, negligence, 
or willful misconduct of Licensee, or its officers, directors, employees, agents or contractors, 
in connection with damage to tangible property or injury to persons including death arising 



19 
 
 

out of the construction, maintenance, repair, presence, use, relocation, transfer, removal or 
operation by Licensee, or by Licensee’s officers, directors, employees, agents, or contractors, 
of Licensee’s Communications Facilities, except to the extent of City’s negligence or willful 
misconduct giving rise to such Covered Claims. 

 
 

17.3 Procedure for Indemnification. 

 

(a) City shall give prompt written notice to Licensee of any claim or threatened 
claim, specifying the factual basis for such claim and the amount of the 
claim.  If the claim relates to an action, suit, or proceeding filed by a third 
party against City, City shall give the notice to Licensee as promptly as 
reasonably practical and no later than ten (10) calendar days after City 
receives written notice of the action, suit, or proceeding. 

 
(b) City’s failure to give the required notice will not relieve Licensee from its 

obligation to indemnify City unless, and only to the extent, that Licensee is 
materially prejudiced by such failure. 

 
(c) Licensee will have the right at any time, by notice to City, to participate in 

or assume control of, the defense of the claim with counsel of its choice.  
City agrees to cooperate fully with Licensee.  If Licensee assumes control 
of the defense of any third-party claim, City shall have the right to 
participate in the defense at its own expense.  If Licensee does not assume 
control or otherwise participate in the defense of any third-party claim, 
Licensee shall be bound by the results obtained by City with respect to the 
claim. 

 
(d) If Licensee assumes the defense of a third-party claim as described above, 

then in no event will City admit any liability with respect to, or settle, 
compromise or discharge, any third-party claim without Licensee’s prior 
written consent, and City will agree to any settlement, compromise or 
discharge of any third-party claim which Licensee may recommend which 
releases City completely from such claim, without cost to City. 

 
17.4 Environmental Hazards.  Licensee represents and warrants that its use of City’s 
Poles will not generate any Hazardous Substances, that it will not store or dispose on or 
about City’s Poles or transport to City’s Poles any hazardous substances and that Licensee’s 
Communications Facilities will not constitute or contain and will not generate any 
hazardous substance in violation of federal, state, or local law now or hereafter in effect, 
including any amendments.  “Hazardous Substance” shall be interpreted broadly to mean 
any substance or material designated or defined as hazardous or toxic waste, hazardous or 
toxic material, hazardous or toxic or radioactive substance, dangerous radio frequency 
radiation, or other similar terms by any federal, state, or local laws, regulations or rules 
now or hereafter in effect, including any amendments.  Licensee further represents and 
warrants that in the event of breakage, leakage, incineration, or other disaster, its 



20 
 
 

Communications Facilities would not release any Hazardous Substances. Licensee and its 
agents, contractors, and subcontractors shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City 
and its respective officials, officers, board members, council members, commissioners, 
representatives, employees, agents, and contractors against any and all liability, costs, 
damages, fines, taxes, special charges by others, penalties, punitive damages, or expenses 
arising from or due to the release, threatened release, or storage of any Hazardous 
Substances on, under, or adjacent to City’s Poles only to the extent attributable to 
Licensee’s Facilities. Should City’s Poles be declared to contain Hazardous Substances, 
City, Licensee, and all Attaching Entities shall share proportionately in the cost of disposal 
of the affected Poles based on each entity’s individual percentage use of same.  For 
Attaching Entities, such percentage shall be derived from the sum of space occupied by 
each Attaching Entity plus its share of the common space, including the NESC safety space.  
For City, such percentage shall be equal to the space above the NESC safety space plus its 
share of the common Space.  If the source or presence of the Hazardous Substance is solely 
attributable to particular parties, including City alone, such costs shall be borne solely by 
those parties. 

 

17.5 Municipal Liability Limits.  No provision of this Agreement is intended, or shall 
be construed, to be a waiver for any purpose by City of any applicable state limits on 
municipal liability or governmental immunity.  No indemnification provision contained in 
this Agreement under which Licensee indemnifies City shall be construed in any way to 
limit any other indemnification provision contained in this Agreement. 

 
17.6 Attorney’s Fees and Costs.  If either party is successful in an action in a court of 
competent jurisdiction under this Agreement, and is granted a final and appealable order to 
enforce this Agreement, the losing party shall pay successful party’s reasonable attorney’s 
fees and costs. 
 
17.7 No Liability Loss Profits. Under no circumstances shall either party be liable to 
the other party or the other party’s customers for special, indirect, incidental, punitive, 
exemplary or consequential damages suffered by the other party or any customer of the 
other party for the lost profits or other business interruption damages, whether by virtue of 
any statute in tort or in contract, under any provisions of indemnity or otherwise, regardless 
of the theory of liability upon which such claim may be based. 

 
Article 18 - Duties, Responsibilities, and Exculpation 

 

18.1 Duty to Inspect.  Licensee acknowledges and agrees that City does not warrant the 
condition or safety of City’s Facilities, or the premises surrounding the Facilities, and 
Licensee further acknowledges and agrees that it has an obligation to inspect City’s Poles 
and/ or premises surrounding the Poles, prior to commencing any work on City’s Poles or 
entering the premises surrounding such Poles. 
 
18.2 Knowledge of Work Conditions.  By executing this Agreement, Licensee warrants 
that it has acquainted, or will fully acquaint, itself and its employees and/or contractors and 
agents with the conditions relating to the work that Licensee will undertake under this 



21 
 
 

Agreement and that it fully understands or will acquaint itself with the facilities, 
difficulties, and restrictions attending the execution of such work. 

 
18.3 Disclaimer. CITY MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES 

WITH REGARD TO CITY’S POLES, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY 

DISCLAIMED, AND CITY MAKES NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED 

WARRANTIES, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT EXPRESSLY AND 

UNAMBIGUOUSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT. CITY EXPRESSLY 

DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 

FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

 

18.4 Duty of Competent Supervision and Performance.  The parties further 
understand and agree that, in the performance of work under this Agreement, Licensee and 
its agents, employees, contractors, and subcontractors will work near electrically energized 
lines, transformers, or other City Facilities.  The parties understand and intend that energy 
generated, stored, or transported by City Facilities will not be interrupted during the 
continuance of this Agreement, except in emergencies endangering life or threatening 
grave personal injury or property.  Licensee shall ensure that its employees, agents, 
contractors, and subcontractors have the necessary qualifications, skill, knowledge, 
training, and experience to protect themselves, their fellow employees, agents, contractors, 
and subcontractors; employees, agents, contractors, and subcontractors of City; and the 
general public, from harm or injury while performing work permitted pursuant to this 
Agreement.  In addition, Licensee shall furnish its employees, agents, contractors, and 
subcontractors competent supervision and sufficient and adequate tools and equipment for 
their work to be performed in a safe manner.  Licensee agrees that in emergency situations 
in which it may be necessary to de-energize any part of City’s equipment, Licensee shall 
ensure that work is suspended until the equipment has been de-energized and that no such 
work is conducted unless and until the equipment is made safe. 

 
18.5 Requests to De-Energize.  If City de-energizes any equipment or line at Licensee’s 
request and for its benefit and convenience in performing a particular segment of any work, 
Licensee shall reimburse City in accordance with Paragraph 4.09 (Determination of 
Charges), for all costs and expenses that City incurs in complying with Licensee’s request.  
Before City de-energizes any equipment or line, it shall provide, upon request, an estimate 
of all costs and expenses to be incurred in accommodating Licensee’s request. 
 
18.6 Interruption of Service.  If Licensee causes an interruption of service by damaging 
or interfering with any equipment of City, Licensee shall, at its own expense, immediately 
do all things reasonable to avoid injury or damages, direct and incidental, resulting there 
from and shall notify City immediately. 
 
18.7 Duty to Inform.  Licensee further warrants that it understands the imminent 
dangers (INCLUDING SERIOUS BODILY INJURY OR DEATH FROM 
ELECTROCUTION) inherent in the work necessary to make installations on City’s Poles 
by Licensee’s employees, agents, contractors, or subcontractors, and Licensee accepts the 
duty and sole responsibility to notify and inform Licensee’s employees, agents, contractors, 



22 
 
 

or subcontractors of such dangers, and to keep them informed regarding same. 

 
Article 19 - Insurance 

 

19.1 Policies Required. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall 
keep in force and effect all insurance policies as described below: 

 
(a) Waiver of Subrogation.  To the extent allowed by law, Licensee hereby 

waives and releases any and all rights of action for negligence against City 
which may hereafter arise on account of damage to Licensee’s property, 
resulting from any fire, or other casualty of the kind covered by standard 
insurance policies with extended coverage, regardless of whether or not, or 
in what amounts, such insurance is now or hereafter carried by Licensee.  
This waiver and release shall apply between the Parties and shall also apply 
to any claim asserted as a right of subrogation.  All such policies of 
insurance obtained by Licensee concerning its property shall waive the 
insurer's right of subrogation against City. 

 
(b) Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  Licensee 

agrees to provide workers’ compensation insurance for all its employees in 
accordance with the statutory requirements of the State of Minnesota.  
Licensee shall also carry employers’ liability insurance with minimum 
limits as follows: $500,000 for bodily injury by disease per employee; 
$500,000 aggregate for bodily injury by disease; and $500,000 for bodily 
injury by accident. 

 

(c) Commercial General Liability Insurance.  Licensee agrees that at its own 
cost and expense, it will maintain commercial general liability insurance 
with limits not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence; $4,000,000 annual 
aggregate, for bodily injury (including death) and for damage or destruction 
to property.  The policy shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, products-completed operations, personal injury, advertising 
injury, and contractually assumed liability. 

 
(d) Automobile Liability Insurance.  Business automobile policy covering all 

owned, hired and non-owned private passenger autos and commercial 
vehicles. Minimum combined single liability limit not less than $2,000,000 
each occurrence. 

 
(e) Umbrella Liability Insurance.  Coverage is to be in excess of the sum 

employers’ liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability 
insurance required above.  Limits of liability not less than $5,000,000 each 
occurrence, $5,000,000 aggregate. 

 
(f) Property Insurance.  Each party will be responsible for maintaining 

property insurance on its own facilities, buildings, and other improvements, 



23 
 
 

including all equipment, fixtures, and City structures, fencing, or support 
systems that may be placed on, within, or around City Facilities to protect 
fully against hazards of fire, vandalism and malicious mischief, and such 
other perils as are covered by policies of insurance commonly referred to 
and known as extended coverage insurance or self-insure such exposures. 

 
19.2 Qualification; Priority; Contractors’ Coverage.  The insurer must be authorized 
to do business under the laws of the state of Minnesota and have an “A” or better rating in 
Best’s Guide.  Such insurance will be primary.  All contractors and all of their 
subcontractors who perform work on behalf of Licensee shall carry, in full force and effect, 
workers’ compensation and employers’ liability, comprehensive general liability, and 
automobile liability insurance coverage of the type that Licensee is required to obtain under 
this Article with the same limits. 

 
19.3 Certificate of Insurance; Other Requirements.  Prior to the execution of this 
Agreement and prior to each insurance policy expiration date during the term of this 
Agreement, Licensee will furnish City with a certificate of insurance (Certificate). The 
Certificate shall reference this Agreement and workers’ compensation and property 
insurance waivers of subrogation required by this Agreement.  The policies shall contain a 
provision that the City shall be given thirty (30) calendar days advance notice of 
cancellation or nonrenewal of insurance during the term of this Agreement.  City, its 
Council members, agencies, officers, officials, employees and representatives 
(collectively, “Additional Insureds”) shall be named as Additional Insureds under all of the 
policies, except workers’ compensation, which shall be so stated on the Certificate of 
Insurance.  All policies, other than workers’ compensation, shall be written on an 
occurrence and not on a claims-made basis.  Licensee shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless City and Additional Insureds from and against payment of any deductible and 
payment of any premium on any policy required under this Article.  Licensee shall obtain 
Certificates from its agents, contractors, and their subcontractors and provide a copy of 
such Certificates to City upon request. 

 

19.4 Limits.  The limits of liability set out in this Article may be increased or decreased 
by mutual consent of the parties, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld by either 
party, in the event of any factors or occurrences, including substantial increases in the level 
of jury verdicts or judgments or the passage of state, federal, or other governmental 
compensation plans, or laws that would materially increase or decrease Licensee’s exposure 
to risk. 

 
19.5 Prohibited Exclusions.  No policies of insurance required to be obtained by Licensee 
or its contractors or subcontractors shall contain provisions that: (1) exclude coverage of 
liability assumed by this Agreement with City except as to infringement of patents or 
copyrights or for libel and slander in program material, (2) exclude coverage of liability 
arising from excavating, collapse, or underground work, (3) exclude coverage for injuries to 
City’s employees or agents, or (4) exclude coverage of liability for injuries or damages 
caused by Licensee’s contractors or the contractors’ employees, or agents. This list of 
prohibited provisions shall not be interpreted as exclusive. 



24 
 
 

 
19.6 Deductible/Self-insurance Retention Amounts.  Licensee shall be fully responsible 
for any deductible or self-insured retention amounts contained in its insurance program or 
for any deficiencies in the amounts of insurance maintained. 

 

 
Article 20 - Authorization Not Exclusive 

 

City shall have the right to grant, renew, and extend rights and privileges to others not party 
to this Agreement by contract or otherwise, to use City Facilities covered by this Agreement. 
Such rights shall not interfere with the rights granted to Licensee by the specific Permits 
issued pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
Article 21 - Assignment 

 

21.1 Limitations on Assignment.  Licensee shall not assign its rights or obligations 
under this Agreement, nor any part of such rights or obligations, without the prior written 
consent of City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; 
except that Licensee may, without the prior consent of the City, assign all of its rights under 
this Agreement to a parent, subsidiary, or Affiliate of Licensee.  This Agreement shall bind 
and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  
For the purposes of the Section, “Affiliate” means, any entity that controls or is controlled 
by Licensee, or is under common control with Licensee. 

 
21.2 Obligations of Assignee/Transferee and Licensee. Licensee shall remain fully 
liable under this Agreement and shall not be released from performing any of the terms, 
covenants, or conditions of this Agreement without the express written consent to the 
release of Licensee by City, except as otherwise provided in Section 21.1. 

 

21.3 Sub-licensing.  Without City’s prior written consent, Licensee shall not allow third 
parties to place Attachments on City’s Facilities.  Any such action shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement.  The use of Licensee’s Communications Facilities by third parties 
(including but not limited to leases of dark fiber) that involves no additional Attachment is 
not subject to this Paragraph. 

 
Article 22 - Failure to Enforce 

 

Failure of City or Licensee to take action to enforce compliance with any of the terms or 
conditions of this Agreement or to give notice or declare this Agreement or any 
authorization granted hereunder terminated shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment 
of any term or condition of this Agreement, but the same shall be and remain at all times in 
full force and effect until terminated, in accordance with this Agreement. 

 
Article 23 – Dispute Resolution 

 

All parties agree to make every effort to settle disputes in good faith informally before 



25 
 
 

instituting formal processes.  Where informal efforts fail, any claim, controversy or dispute 
arising out of this Agreement shall be subject to non-binding mediation as a condition 
precedent to the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either party.  The mediation 
shall be conducted in Renville County, Minnesota, and in accordance with the Minnesota 
Civil Mediation Act, Minn. Stat. 572.31, et., seq. Any claim, controversy or dispute not 
resolved by mediation may be the subject of legal or equitable proceedings filed by either 
party.  The venue for legal or equitable proceedings shall be in Renville County, Minnesota.  
The parties waive all rights to and claims for monetary awards other than compensatory 
damages, except as otherwise provided herein.  During any dispute procedure or lawsuit, 
the parties will continue providing services to each other and performing their obligations 
under this Agreement. 

 
Article 24 - Termination of Agreement 

 

24.1 City shall have the right, pursuant to the procedures set out in this Article, to 
terminate this entire Agreement, or any Permit issued under it, whenever Licensee is in 
default of any material term or condition of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, 
the following circumstances: 

 
(a) Construction, operation, or maintenance of Licensee’s Communications 

Facilities in violation of law, or in aid of any unlawful act or undertaking; or 
 
(b) Construction, operation, or maintenance of Licensee’s Communications 

Facilities after any authorization required of Licensee has lawfully been 
denied or revoked by any governmental authority or any private holder of 
easements or other rights, or violation of any other agreement with City, 
unless Licensee is challenging such denial or revocation; or 

 
(c) Construction, operation, or maintenance of Licensee’s Communications 

Facilities without the insurance coverage required under Article 19 
(Insurance). 

 

24.2 City will notify Licensee in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days, or as soon as 
reasonably practicable, of any defaults by Licensee under this Agreement.  Licensee shall 
begin to take corrective action to cure any such defaults within fifteen (15) calendar days, 
and completion of such cure within sixty (60) days, or such longer period(s) mutually 
agreed to by the parties, before City will undertake any remedies under this Article. 
 
24.3 If Licensee contests the existence of the default, it may invoke the dispute resolution 
procedures of Article 23 (Dispute Resolution). 

 
24.4 If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute and Licensee fails to discontinue or 
correct a default in a timely manner or fails to give the required confirmation, City may 
immediately terminate the Permit(s) granted under this Agreement for those Poles that are 
the subject of the default.  In the event of termination of this Agreement or any of 
Licensee’s rights, privileges, or authorizations hereunder, City may seek removal of 



26 
 
 

Licensee’s Communications Facilities pursuant to the terms of Article 12 (Removal of 
Licensee’s Facilities), from any or all of City’s Poles.  In such instance, Licensee shall 
remain liable to City for all fees and charges accrued pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 

 
Article 25 - Amending Agreement 

 

This Agreement shall not be amended, changed, or altered except in writing and with 
approval by authorized representatives of both parties. 

 
Article 26 – Notices and Contact Information 

 

26.1 Wherever in this Agreement notice is required to be given by either party to the 
other, such notice shall be in writing and shall be effective when personally delivered to, 
or when delivered using a traceable, nationally recognized courier, with postage prepaid, 
and except where specifically provided for elsewhere, properly addressed as follows: 

 
If to City, at: City of Olivia  
 1009 West Lincoln Ave 
 Olivia, MN 56277 
 Attn: Utilities 

 
with a copy to: jmonson@olivia.mn.us 

 
If to Licensee, at: [BUSINESS NAME] 

[ADDRESS] 
Attn: [TITLE] 

 
With a copy to: [BUSINESS NAME] 

[ADDRESS] 
Attn: [TITLE] 

 

or to such other address as either party, from time to time, may give the other party in 
writing. 

 
26.2 The above notwithstanding the parties may agree to utilize electronic 
communications such as email for notifications related to the Permit application and 
approval process and necessary transfer or pole modifications. 
 
26.3 Both parties shall maintain a list of contacts in order to conduct business, including 
an emergency response number, not available to the general public, where each party can 
report damage to facilities or other situations requiring immediate communications 
between the parties.  Such process shall ensure the ability to respond to concerns and 
requests.  Failure to maintain an emergency contact shall eliminate City’s liability to 
Licensee for any actions that City deems reasonably necessary given the specific 

mailto:jmonson@olivia.mn.us


27 
 
 

circumstances. 
 

Contacts: 

 

 Licensee City 

Emergency Responder  320-523-2361 

Non-Emergency 
Notification 

 electric@olivia.mn.us  

Billing/Receivable  jmonson@olivia.mn.us 
(320) 523-2361 

Contract Contact  jmonson@olivia.mn.us 
(320) 523-2361 

 
Article 27 - Entire Agreement 

 

This Agreement and its appendices, including the Permit issued, constitute the entire 
agreement between the parties concerning attachments of Licensee’s Communications 
Facilities on City’s Poles within the geographical service area covered by this Agreement.  
Unless otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, all previous agreements with respect 
to attachments of Licensee’s Communication Facilities, whether written or oral, between 
City and Licensee are superseded and of no further effect. 

 
Article 28 - Severability 

 

If any provision or portion thereof of this Agreement is or becomes invalid under any 
applicable statute or rule of law, and such invalidity does not materially alter the essence 
of this Agreement to either party, such provision shall not render unenforceable this entire 
Agreement.  Rather, the parties intend that the remaining provisions shall be administered 
as if the Agreement did not include the invalid provision. 

 
Article 29 - Governing Law 

 

All matters relating to this Agreement shall be governed by the laws (without reference to 
choice of law) of the state of Minnesota. Venue for any matter arising under this Agreement 
shall be in the state district court for Renville County, Minnesota. 

 
Article 30 - Incorporation of Recitals and Appendices 

 

The recitals stated above and all appendices to this Agreement are incorporated into and 
constitute part of this Agreement. 

 
Article 31 - Force Majeure 

 

31.1 If either City or Licensee is prevented or delayed from fulfilling any term or 
provision of this Agreement by reason of fire, flood, earthquake, or like acts of nature, 
pandemics resulting in a declared emergency, wars, revolution, civil commotion, 

mailto:electric@olivia.mn.us
mailto:jhighum@rpu.org
mailto:jhighum@rpu.org


28 
 
 

explosion, acts of terrorism, embargo, acts of the government in its sovereign capacity, 
material changes of laws or regulations, labor difficulties, including without limitation, 
strikes, slowdowns, picketing or boycotts, unavailability of equipment of vendor, or any 
other such cause either not attributable to the negligence or fault of, or beyond the 
reasonable control of, the party delayed in performing the acts required by the Agreement, 
then performance of such acts shall be excused for the period of the unavoidable delay, and 
the affected party shall endeavor to remove or overcome such inability as soon as 
reasonably possible. 
 
31.2 City shall not impose any charges on Licensee stemming solely from Licensee’s 
inability to perform required acts during a period of unavoidable delay as described in this 
paragraph, provided that Licensee present City with a written description of such force 
majeure within a reasonable time after occurrence of the event or cause relied on, and 
further provided that this provision shall not operate to excuse Licensee from the timely 
payment of any fees or charges due City under this Agreement.  

 
REST OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

  



29 
 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement in 
duplicate on the day and year first written above. 

 
 
 [COMPANY NAME]   CITY OF OLIVIA 

 

 

 

By: _______________________________ By:  ____________________________ 
 [NAME]      Jon Hawkinson, Mayor 

[TITLE] 
 
       By:  ____________________________ 
        Jasmine Miller, Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
 
        OLIVIA PUBLIC UTILITIES 

 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
        Jo Monson, Utility Account Manager 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A FEES & 

CHARGES 

 

Effective Date January 1, 2024 

 

1. Annual Attachment: $48 per attachment 

The Annual Attachment Fee may be adjusted from time-to-time by the Public Utility 
Commission and is published in City of Olivia’s Rate Schedule, Miscellaneous Fees. 

 
2. Commercial electric base rate: $22.79 

 

3. Commercial energy rate per kWh: $0.1235 

 

4. Energy Adjustment Clause 

 This is a rate received from MMPA that changes monthly 
 

5. Administrative Fee - $50 

This is a non-refundable administrative fee for a new joint use agreement. 

 

6. Permit Review - $100 per hour 

Non-refundable permit review fee for all new attachments. Maximum of 200 poles per 
permit application. 

 
7. Unauthorized Attachment: 

• 3 x annual attachment fee, per occurrence. 
 

8. Failure to Timely Transfer, Abandon, or Remove Facilities: 

This fee starts the day following the deadline in the written notice through 
completion of the work. 

• $5 per pole, per day. 



    

 

 
APPENDIX B — 

INSTRUCTIONS AND 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT 

(NOT SMALL CELL 

WIRELESS FACILITIES 

PERMIT) 

 
Date: Number of Poles (200 max): 

 

 

 

 

   
 

   
 

Narrative Description of Proposed Activity: 
  

 

This application is subject to the terms and conditions of the Pole Attachment 
Agreement between the Parties.  The approved permit will be incorporated by reference.  
Instructions for completion are attached.  All submittals shall be signed by a 
professional engineer, registered in the State of Minnesota, certifying that Licensee’s 
proposed installation is compliant with NESC in effect at the time of the installation, 
City of Olivia Specifications, any other applicable laws. 

 
CITY OF OLIVIA APPROVAL: 

Permission is hereby granted to Licensee to attach to Poles listed on the attached Route 
Maps and Make-Ready work installation plans, subject to payment of the necessary 
charges as set out by City and agreed to by Licensee. 

 
  

 
  

 

 
POST-CONSTRUCTION VERIFICATION COMPLETED BY LICENSEE: 

Upon final inspection, I hereby verify that the attachments described above have been 
installed in accordance with the Route Maps and Make-Ready work installation plans 
of the approved permit and that they fully comply with the National Electrical Safety 
Code® (NESC), latest edition and Article 7.3 of the Pole Attachment Agreement. 

 
 

   

TO: FROM:  

Olivia Public Utilities 

1009 West Lincoln Ave  

Olivia, MN 56277 

jmonson@olivia.mn.us 

Company Name:   

Contact Person:   

Phone:   Email: 

Engineer:   

 Phone:   Email: 

 

Name:   Signature: 

Date:   Email: 

Phone:    

 

Licensee’s Authorized Representative:    

Company Name:    

Email:   Phone:   Date Inspected: 

Signature:    

 

mailto:jmonson@olivia.mn.us


 

 

 
 

PERMIT APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS 

Submittals required with application: 

1. Route map that shows each pole proposed for attachment.  

2. A detailed Pole Inventory report (sample provided upon request) that shows all 
of the pertinent information about the pole that exists at the time of analysis. 

3. Proposed make ready work (if any) that would be required by all parties, including 
applicant in order for the proposed attachment to comply with NESC and City of 
Olivia Specifications included. Please note that this includes identifying any 
existing NESC clearance violations that may be present on the pole.  All violations 
must be brought into NESC compliance before any further attachments will be 
permitted.  The proposed attachment submittal should include accommodations for 
any necessary corrective work that may need to be done to bring the pole into NESC 
compliance. 

4. A current IKE GPS photo (preferred) or Pole Profile sheet of each pole that 
shows present attachment heights of all key facilities.  Please note that if the 
base of the pole is obscured, City of Olivia requires the use of an offset stick to 
ensure accurate pole measurements. 

5. A printout of the pole loading analysis for each pole done by the software your 
firm is using 



 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF OLIVIA 

SPECIFICATIONS 

 

A. General Requirements 

1. All facilities attached to Licensor’s poles shall be designed and installed 
to NESC Class B construction standards. 

Exception:  If existing pole does not meet NESC Class B construction standard 

prior to the proposed attachment by Licensee, the proposed attachment may be 

allowed under the listed conditions below. 

a) Class C construction is allowable by NESC for location pole is installed 

b) Proposed attachment does not cause existing pole to exceed 90% of rated 
Pole Capacity Utilization for NESC Class C construction 

2. No new Attachments will be permitted on 100 kilovolt (kV) and above transmission 
poles. 

B. Tagging 

1. Every attachment of the Licensee installed under this contract shall be tagged or 
marked with a non-metallic tag, acceptable to the Licensor, at every pole to 
which cable is attached. 

2. Two (2) tags shall be installed – one at the point of attachment and the other 
within a boundary starting from 3’ above the ground line to 6’. Tags shall be 
placed on the curb side of the pole and shall include the identification code 
listed below. 

3. All marking tags, carriers (holders) and attaching devices shall be durable and 
ultraviolet (UV) resistant. Non-UV inhibited plastic tie wraps are not 
acceptable. 

a) All identification tags supplied by the Licensee shall comply with the following 
requirements: 

b) Numbers or letters shall be 1-inch high black on yellow background 

c) Number carriers (holders) shall be non-conductive 

4. A sample of proposed tagging shall be submitted to City of Olivia’s Utility 
Department for approval along with the attachment application. 

5. Identification codes by Code Number 

 
001 Arvig Communications Systems 006 Vacant 

002 Lightbeam 007 Vacant 

003 Lumen/CenturyLink  008 Vacant 

004 Mediacom  009 Vacant 

005 City of Olivia 010 Vacant 

 



 

 

C. Clearances 

1. Attachment and Cable Clearances: Licensee’s Attachments on Poles, including 
metal attachment clamps and bolts, metal cross-arm supports, bolts, and other 
equipment, must be attached so as to maintain the minimum separations 
specified in the NESC along with the additional Licensor requirements listed: 

a) No bolt used by Licensee to attach its facilities shall extend or project more 
than one (1) inch beyond its nut. 

b) All Licensee Attachments shall have at least two (2) inches of clearance 
from unbounded hardware. 

c) All Licensee Attachments shall not use any crossarm or alley arm brace 
above the arm that it supports. 

2. Service Drop Clearance: The parallel minimum separation between City’s 
service drops and communications service drops shall be a minimum of 
twelve (12) inches, and the crossover separation between the drops shall be 
a minimum of twenty-four (24) inches. 

3. Sag and Mid-Span Clearances: Licensee will be particularly careful to provide 

proper clearances and leave proper sag in its lines and cables and shall observe 

the established sag of power line conductors and other cables so that minimum 

clearances are: (a) achieved at Poles located on both ends of the span; and (b) 

retained throughout the span. At the mid-span, for a utility voltage less than 50 

kV between power line conductors. The following are some of the clearance 

requirements from the 2017 NESC: 

a) In midspan, a thirty (30) inch separation must be maintained between any 

communication cable and utility power line conductor under 50 kV. 

Additionally, anywhere in the span, a minimum four (4) inch separation must 

be maintained between the Licensee and any other communication cable. 

b) At the Pole support, a forty (40) inch separation must be maintained between the 

utility power line conductor and any communications connection/attachment. 

Additionally, a twelve (12) inch separation must be maintained between 

Licensee and any other communications connection/attachment. 

 
4. Climbing Space: A clear Climbing Space must be maintained at all times on the 

face of the Pole. All Attachments must be placed so as to allow and maintain a 
clear and proper Climbing Space on the face of the Pole. Licensee’s cable/wire 
Attachments shall be placed on the same side of the Pole as those of other 
Attaching Entities. All communication risers shall be grouped in the same 
quadrant of the pole in order to maximize climbing space. 

5. Pedestals and Enclosures: Every effort should be made to install Pedestals, vaults 
and/or Enclosures a minimum of four (4) feet from Poles or other City Facilities. 

D. Down Guys and Anchors 

1. When performing pole analysis, City of Olivia uses 3/8” utility grade, 7 strand 
guy wires as an installation standard for our distribution guying. City of Olivia 
does have Extra High Strength (EHS) guy wire available, but it is only typically 



 

 

installed for transmission pole guying. 

2. Licensee shall be responsible for procuring and installing all anchors and guy 
wires to support the additional stress placed on the Poles by Licensee’s 
Attachments. Anchors must be guyed adequately. 

3. Anchors and guy wires must be installed on each Pole where an angle or a 
dead- end occurs. Licensee shall make guy attachments to Poles at or below its 
cable Attachment. No proposed anchor can be within four (4) feet of an 
existing anchor without written consent of City. 

4. Licensee may not attach guy wires to the anchors of City or third-party user 
without the anchor owner’s specific prior written consent. 

5. All down guys, head guys or messenger dead ends installed by Licensee shall be 
attached by the use of “thru” bolts or approved banding. Such bolts placed in a 
“bucking” position shall have at least three (3) inches vertical clearance. Under 
no circumstances shall Licensee install down guys, head guys or messenger dead 
ends by means of encircling the pole with such attachments. 

6. No Attachment may be installed on a Pole until all required guys and anchors 
are installed. No Attachment may be modified, added to, or relocated in such a 
way as will materially increase the stress or loading on Poles until all required 
guys and anchors are installed. 

7. Licensee’s down guys, if required, shall be either insulated or grounded per NESC. 

E. Vegetation Management 

1. All necessary right-of-way maintenance, including tree trimming or cutting, shall 
be performed by the parties as may be mutually agreed upon, and the cost shall be 
borne by the parties in accordance with Article 10.5 (Allocation of Costs). 

2. Any re-clearing of existing right-of-way, and any tree trimming work necessary 
for the installation of attachments, shall be performed by the parties as may be 
mutually agreed upon, and the cost shall be borne by the parties in accordance 
with Article 10.5 (Allocation of Costs). 

F. Miscellaneous Requirements 

1. Cable Bonding: Licensee’s messenger cable shall be bonded to the Pole ground 
wire at each Pole that has a ground wire. 

2. Communication Cables: All Communications cables/wires not owned by City 
shall be attached within the Communications space that is located forty (40) 
inches below the lowest City conductors, except as otherwise permitted by 
the NESC. 

3. Hole Spacing: No new holes drilled through a pole by Licensee shall be 
located with 4” of an existing hole. 

4. Unused or Abandoned Holes: Licensee’s agrees to plug any unused or 
abandoned holes that they drill into the Licensor’s pole or occur as a result 
of the Licensee’s Make-Ready work installation plan with approved 
plugging methods. 

5. Neat and Workmanlike Appearance: Licensee shall install and maintain 
any and all of its facilities in a neat and workmanlike manner consistent 



 

 

with the maintenance of the overall appearance of the pole. 

6. Mid-span antennas will be subject to future City of Olivia Specification 
standards, which shall be reasonable and shared with Licensee when 
available. 



 

 

 

BOLD Community Pool – Report 11-202 

 

 My goal is to have a lifeguarding class in December (tbd).  Water Safety Instructor class this winter after the holidays.  Spring lessons,  private lessons and 

hopefully another lifeguarding class this spring. 

 

The adjuster has sent another payment for the fire and the adjuster’s accountant is helping  with the revenue loss portion of the policy.  I just sent new 

information to the accountant for his analysis.   

 

The JPA met on Thursday, November 9th, 2023 at 5:30pm.  Discussed the status of the repairs and cooler/electrical room is complete. A tour for those who 

could, to look at the repairs to the pool. 

 

We attempted to put water into the pool for 2 days and discovered a leak then spent three days draining the pool.  We have a contractor coming to make 

repairs.  We are getting close to reopening. 

 

Thank you 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions 

Tracey Johnson, Pool Coordinator BOLD Community Pool 

Tracey.johnson@bold.k12.mn.us 320-523-1031 ext3152 

mailto:Tracey.johnson@bold.k12.mn.us

	Background:
	Budget Impact:
	Funding Source:
	Recommendation:
	Motion Type:
	Requested Action/Motion:
	Attachments:
	ADP78D2.tmp
	Join via Zoom.us              Meeting ID:      Passcode: 56277

	4.F - 2023 Refuse Assessment List.pdf
	Sheet1

	4.F - 2023 Refuse Assessment List.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP94B1.tmp
	City of Oliva, Minnesota
	Resolution No. 2023-115
	RESOLUTION DEFERRING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
	AGAINST CERTAIN PROPERTY

	ADPD42D.tmp
	Jasmine Miller, City Clerk

	ADP11A6.tmp
	WEEDS
	Jasmine Miller, City Clerk

	ADP550A.tmp
	Jasmine Miller, City Clerk

	5.D3 - Assessment Map_11.20.23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ASSESSMENT MAP
	ASSESSMENT MAP (2)


	5.E - SRTS Ph 2 Scope of Services Ltr & SLA.pdf
	Safe Routes to School Phase 2_11.20.23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PHASE 2 OPTION 7-25-19 DRB



	5.G - Pole_Attachment_Agreement_2023.pdf
	POLE ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT
	(Not for Attachment of  Small Wireless Facilities)
	Recitals
	Article 1 - Definitions
	Article 2 - Term of Agreement
	Article 3 - Scope of Agreement
	Article 4 - Fees and Charges
	Article 5 - Specifications
	Article 6 - Private and Regulatory Compliance
	Article 7 - Permit Application Procedures
	Article 8 - Make-Ready Work/Installation
	8.5 Licensee’s Installation/Removal/Maintenance Work.
	Article 9 - Transfers
	Article 10 - Modifications and/or Replacements
	Article 11 - Abandonment or Removal of City Facilities
	Article 12 - Removal of Licensee’s Facilities
	Article 13 - Termination of Permit
	Article 14 - Inspection of Licensee’s Facilities
	Article 15 - Unauthorized Occupancy or Access
	Article 16 - Reporting Requirements
	Article 17 - Liability and Indemnification
	17.3 Procedure for Indemnification.
	Article 18 - Duties, Responsibilities, and Exculpation
	18.3 Disclaimer. CITY MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO CITY’S POLES, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED, AND CITY MAKES NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT EXPRESSLY AND UNAMBIGUOUSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGR...
	Article 19 - Insurance
	(b) Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  Licensee agrees to provide workers’ compensation insurance for all its employees in accordance with the statutory requirements of the State of Minnesota.  Licensee shall also carry employer...
	Article 20 - Authorization Not Exclusive
	Article 21 - Assignment
	Article 22 - Failure to Enforce
	Article 23 – Dispute Resolution
	Article 24 - Termination of Agreement
	Article 25 - Amending Agreement
	Article 26 – Notices and Contact Information
	Article 27 - Entire Agreement
	Article 28 - Severability
	Article 29 - Governing Law
	Article 30 - Incorporation of Recitals and Appendices
	Article 31 - Force Majeure
	Effective Date January 1, 2024
	2. Commercial electric base rate: $22.79
	3. Commercial energy rate per kWh: $0.1235
	4. Energy Adjustment Clause
	This is a rate received from MMPA that changes monthly
	5. Administrative Fee - $50
	6. Permit Review - $100 per hour
	7. Unauthorized Attachment:
	8. Failure to Timely Transfer, Abandon, or Remove Facilities:

	ADPFA99.tmp
	Join via Zoom.us              Meeting ID:      Passcode: 56277


